
1 
 

AGENDA 
STATE BOARD OF AGRICULTURE 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD, AND FORESTRY 
 
 
Tuesday, July 12, 2016            2800 N. Lincoln Blvd. 
10:00 a.m.     Oklahoma City, OK  73105 
      
 
 
1. Call to Order  
 
2. Roll Call  
 
3. Declaration of a Quorum  
 
4. Introduction of Guests  
 
5. Consideration and Proposed Action on Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of May 24, 2016 
 
6. Public Comment 
 
7. Consideration and Proposed Action on Division Reports  
 
 I.    A. Administrative Services – Bryan Painter 

Summary of present financial condition of the agency and monthly activities in the 
following areas: Finance, Human Resources, Fleet Management, Data Processing and 
Agriculture Law Enforcement Investigators.   
 

  B. Laboratory Services – Tanna Kilpatrick 
   Summary of analytical activities, customer contacts, and other pertinent information 

related to laboratory operations. 
 

C. Forestry Services – George Geissler  
   Summary of activities and accomplishments in resource protection and rural fire 

defense, forest management and regeneration, water quality, urban forestry, forestry 
education and law enforcement.  Includes statistics on wildfires and law enforcement 
activity and narrative of forestry program highlights for the month. 

 
D. Consumer Protection Services – Kenny Naylor 

   Addresses stop sale orders on insect and disease infested crops, phytosanitary 
certificates issued, insect survey summaries, pesticide registration updates, pesticide 
inspections, seed program and seed laboratory updates, weights and measures reports, 
scanner inspections, grain warehouses and meetings attended by division personnel.  

 
 
 
 



2 
 

E. Animal Industry Services – Rod Hall, DVM 
 Addresses information and activities of staff related to control and eradication of 

animal diseases affecting livestock and livestock market audits.  It also addresses 
emergency response preparation and education for response to any outbreak of 
foreign, emerging and/or eradicated disease.  

 
 F.   Wildlife Services – Kevin Grant 

   Summary of activities and accomplishments in wildlife damage management to 
protect state resources such as agriculture, property, natural resources, and public 
health and safety from wildlife damage and wildlife threats.  

 
  G. Agricultural Statistics – Wilbert Hundl, Jr.  
   Addresses the current crop conditions and livestock inventory numbers.  Also 

included is a report on the number of information requests received, reports released 
during the previous month, reports to be released during the current month, and the 
meetings attended by Division personnel during the previous month. 

 
  H. Market Development Services – Jamey Allen 

   Summary of the accomplishments, projects and events of Ag in the Classroom, 
Agritourism, Communications, Domestic Marketing (Made in Oklahoma, Made in 
Oklahoma Coalition), Diversified Marketing (Farmers Market, Specialty Crop Block 
Grants, Plasticulture, Farm to School), International Marketing, Market News and 
Rural Economic Development. 

 
I. Agricultural Environmental Management Services – Jeremy Seiger 

Executive summary that addresses Swine Feeding Operations, registered poultry 
feeding operations and poultry waste applicators, National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES), plus agricultural composting facilities.  Includes 
numbers and statistics on complaint investigations, technical assistance contacts, 
inspections, enforcement/compliance activities and seminars/meetings attended by 
Division personnel for the month. 
 

J. Office of General Counsel – Teena Gunter 
Summarizes activities of the division and Commercial Pet Breeders, including rules, 
collections, legal research, meetings, support for programs, contracts, employment 
issues, open records requests, farming and ranching incorporations, and informal and 
formal enforcement actions before the Board, district court, and federal court. 

 
L. Food Safety Services – Stan Stromberg 
 Addresses the inspection of meat, poultry, egg, and milk processing facilities to 

determine compliance with regulatory standards. 
 

      II.  Ag Communications and Outreach Update – Bryan Painter 
 
8. Consideration and Proposed Action on Claims 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

9. Consideration and Proposed Action on Purchases/Contracts 
 

OSU - Poultry Disease Control Research for FY17 - $48,276 
The funding is for education training for operators of poultry feeding operations and land 
applicators of poultry waste provided by Oklahoma State University through the Oklahoma 
Cooperative Extension Service.  
 
Oklahoma Department of Career and Technology Education - Oklahoma Horizon 
Agriculture News Program for FY17 - $53,438 
For the for the purpose of producing the Oklahoma Horizon Agricultural News Program. 
They will develop and direct a weekly television program that focuses on Oklahoma rural 
economic development, Oklahoma agriculture, and career and technology education in 
Oklahoma. To provide a media director for the weekly show that will be responsible for the 
production and placement on Oklahoma local television.  
 
Rural Enterprises Incorporated for FY17 - $476,250 
This contract is with REI for the purpose of assisting agriculture and improving 
Oklahoma’s rural communities through REI’s Rural Development and Housing Programs. 
REI has the expertise and unique agribusiness and rural development programs already in 
place.  REI is the only entity in the state that provides a full menu of services including 
programs such as our Business Incubator/Commercial Facilities Program, a Market Rate 
Housing Program, Entrepreneurial Programs for Women, Native American and other 
minority businesses, and Business Lending programs that assist in essential aspects of 
agribusiness and rural community development.  
 
Tulsa State Fair for FY17- Expo Square - $39,375 
The amount of $39,375.00 goes directly for the purpose of promoting the Oklahoma 
agriculture industry through national agriculture events, Tulsa State Fair Junior Livestock 
Auction, and the Tulsa State Fair Livestock Scholarship Program.   
 
Oklahoma State University - Agriculture Leadership Program for FY17 - $38,000 
This contract is for the purpose of educating and training young leaders in the Oklahoma 
Agriculture Industry. The program focuses on developing potential leaders through 
personal and group study sessions. To help potential leaders develop a better understanding 
of the various systems of economics and government. To help program participants 
increase and utilize their own knowledge and skills in order to solve problems and to 
explore opportunities for Oklahoma agriculture. To develop and teach a curriculum 
including, leadership development; communication; government operations and 
institutions; economics, resource allocation, marketing and finance problems in agriculture; 
sociology; religious and cultural studies, major issues that affect Oklahoma and US 
agriculture, and political process, international trade, water and energy. 
 
Made in Oklahoma Coalition for FY17 - $254,790 
The amount of $254,790.00 goes directly to support a unique public/private partnership 
that establishes a marketing program for the purpose of promoting food brand awareness, 
trade and consumer loyalty for Oklahoma food products through a variety of cooperative 
marketing activities.  In addition, MIO promotes business retention, increase of sales to 
retail and foodservice outlets and business expansion.   
 



4 
 

Oklahoma Youth Expo for FY17 - $89,063 
This amount of $89,062.00 will directly support the 2017 state-wide spring junior livestock 
show.  For 101 years, the youth of the state of Oklahoma have exhibited some of the finest 
livestock in the country at OYE, which carries the title of “The World’s Largest Junior 
Livestock Show” with participants from all 77 Oklahoma counties.  OYE also provides 
agricultural scholarships and leadership-training programs for Oklahoma students.  The 10-
day OYE generates an economic impact of $24.5 million to the OKC economy and 
provides hundreds of youth with scholarships to continue their education at a collegiate 
level.   

 
Graphic Design for FY17 - $35,000.00 
The Agritourism Program is currently seeking a creative agency to maintain the 
Agritourism brand while developing new print materials, refreshing website content, 
strategically updating social media channels, and assisting with social and website 
analytics. It is the goal of the Agritourism Program to utilize all marketing channels to 
create a consistent brand awareness campaign and utilize social channels for seasonal 
promotions within the many categories of Agritourism.  

 
 Purchase of 4 surface tablets, printers, mouse and cases for use by field staff - $9,600. 
 

Professional Services – FY17 request for approval of $170,000 to fund MOA with OWRB 
to sample LMFO groundwater monitoring wells around lagoons.  Funding is provided from 
EPA and dispersed directly to OWRB through OSEE.   

Urban Forestry Council    FY17 - $20,000. 
Increase from $15,000 to $20,000  
This is a statewide urban forestry educational activities grant. Without this program the 
citizens of Oklahoma would not have the knowledge to perform proper tree care. Federal 
Funding 
 
Southern Pine Beetle Grant – Clifford City  FY17 - $4,000. 
This grant thins existing stands of pines, protecting them for pine beetle attack. 
Without this there could be economical loss to the landowners. 
 
Public Awareness Campaign, National Cohesive Fire Strategy FY17 - $110,000. 
Development of campaign to bring public awareness on wildland fire preparedness. 
 
Purchased of 220 gram balance.  Purchase not to exceed $12,349.95. 
Purchase of the 220 gram capacity balance for use in metrology testing.  This is necessary 
to replace a balance that had lost low level measurement capability.  Without the purchase 
of this balance the Bureau of Standards would be unable to fulfill all of the parameters of 
its accreditation. 

Purchase for repair service for Ion Chromatograph.  Repair service not to exceed 
$5,527.00. 
 
 
 



5 
 

Purchase of various laboratory supplies (i.e. glassware, pipetters, etc.). Purchase of 
laboratory supplies not to exceed $19,933.07. 
Purchase of Laboratory supplies consist of glassware/small tabletop instruments/supplies. 
These purchases are necessary to fulfill our regulatory testing for the State of Oklahoma. 

Purchase of a Geminator with a Humidifier.  Purchase not to exceed $14,900.00. 
Purchase of germinator with a humidifier for the Seed Laboratory is necessary to replace a 
non-functioning germinator used in regulatory and private seed testing. 

 
10. Consideration and Proposed Action on Cases Resolved by Stipulations 
 

Agricultural Environmental Management Services 
Breckenridge Farm, LLC, 5863 W. State HWY 76, Anderson, Missouri 
Canyons Farm, LLC, 5863 State Hwy 76, Anderson, Missouri  
Deer Valley Farms, LLC, 5863 State Hwy 76, Anderson, Missouri 
Thomas & Misty Leigh Denny, 19169 E. 400 Road, Jay, Oklahoma 
Khou  Yang & Txarh Her, 46129 CO Road 700, Jay, Oklahoma 

            Snowbird Farm, LLC, 5863 W. State HWY 76, Anderson, Missouri 
Sooner, LLC #2, 5863 W. State HWY 76, Anderson, Missouri 

 
Consumer Protection Services 
Michael Biglow, 705 long Beach, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
Park Hill Plants Nursery, P O Box 260, Tahlequah, Oklahoma 
 
Animal Industry Services 

            Steven & Misty Reihm, P. O. Box 31, Cleo Springs, Oklahoma  
 

11. Consideration and Proposed Action on Cases by Consent Order 
 

Consumer Protection Services 
Sooner Scale, Inc., P. O. Box 82386, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
Sooner Scale, Inc., P. O. Box 82386, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
Sooner Scale, Inc., P. O. Box 82386, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
 

**Possible Executive Session (if approved by the required number of members 
present):  As authorized by the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act in Section 307(B)(8) of 
Title 25 of the Oklahoma Statutes, an executive session may be held for the purpose of 
“[e]ngaging in deliberations or rendering a final or intermediate decision in an 
individual proceeding pursuant to Article II of the Administrative Procedures Act.” 
 

12. Old Business 
 
13. New Business – Next Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, August 30, 2016, in 

Oklahoma City 
 
14. Adjournment 

















































A - 1 
 

MAY 2016 ACTIVITY REPORTS 
FOR THE JULY 2016 BOARD MEETING 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
 
 
 

 
FINANCE 
 
Finance Activities 
 
The P-Card total for the month of May was $132,060.88 which was less than April by 
$246,068.57.   Extraordinary expenditures for wildfire activity occurred in April.  May 
expenditures are slightly below average.  A budget revision was completed in May to increase 
revenues to be received due to wildfire activities and the associated expenditures. Meetings were 
held with the Horse Racing Commission to discuss the sharing of resources when that agency 
moves into the Agriculture Building and loss of key Horse Racing Commission personnel due to 
retirements. 
  
 
Expenses 
 
During the month of May, Finance processed 157 vouchers to vendors totaling $1,338,762.61 
which was $123,222.89 less than the month of April. May payrolls were $1,828,882.50 
 
 
Revenue 
 
Revenue for the month of May totaled $1,459,120 which is 15.04% greater than the budgeted 
amount of $1,268,265.  This increase is in part attributable to receipt of administrative costs 
received on behalf of the Statistics Division.  Other divisions are near revenue estimates. 
 
 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
Personnel, Time/Leave, Benefits and Training Sections  
 
Personnel transactions processed during the month of May included: one unclassified new hire 
(Administration/Executive Office), four promotions (Forestry, Ag Lab and Food Safety), and 
two completions of probation (Food Safety and Ag Lab), one resignation (Forestry) and two 
retirements (CPS and AEMS).  Recruitment transactions processed during the month of May to 
fill vacant positions included:  Ag Field Inspector, Administrative Programs Officer  and 
Administrative Assistant (CPS), Accounting Technician (Administration/Finance), Laboratory 



A - 2 
 

Scientist & Environmental/Chemical Laboratory Scientist (Ag Laboratory), Administrative 
Programs Officer (Animal Industry). 
 
  
 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

 
Shawn Colton, Information Systems Service Coordinator, completed the following graphic 
projects for May: 
 
Popcorn & Cookies Sale posters/flyers – R & R Committee 
Birthday flyer – Human Resources 
OECU Conference sign – Administrative Services - Payroll 
CPS Cubicle Tags - CPS 
Forestry Cubicle Tags - Forestry 
Maps for Facebook – Administrative Services - Bryan Painter 
Tailgate edits - issue #1 & #2 (new logo) - Forestry 
Blayne Arthur photos – Executive Office – Secretary Reese 
Blayne Arthur “Going Away Flyer, Slideshow and Invitations” – Market Development - Jamey Allen 
T-shirt Design "Wildland Firefighting Team" - Suzanne McCombs 
Homegrown By Heroes logo – Market Development - AgrioTourism 
Dock inventory photos – General Services 
Legislative Forestry budget flyer – Executive Office - Jim Reese 
Forestry Camp packet - Forestry 
AAA Defensive Driver Certificates – Safety and Training  
R&R COAA Certificates – R & R Committee 
Employee Appreciation Luncheon posters – R & R Committee 
Winner poster (COAA) – Executive Office – Secretary Reese 
Name plates for executive office (Betty & Jim) – Executive Office – Kandi Batts  
Video – Animal Industry – Dr. Rod Hall 
Thank You Poster (OECU) – R & R Committee 
Longevity Certificates - CPS 
Longevity Certificates - Forestry 
Attend R&R Committee meetings 
Setup sound system / screen for Blayne's “Going Away Party”  
Agency website edits and updates  
 
 
 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 
 
ODAFF Special Agents were once again busy working not only cattle cases this month, but also 
large and heavy equipment thefts, along with a couple of animal cruelty cases. 
 
In addition, Special Agents also spent many hours working on combating crimes against 
agriculture producers and on follow-up investigations during the month May with a total of 
ninety-two (92) head of cattle reported stolen during this reporting period. 
 



A - 3 
 

Special Agents opened eleven (11) new investigations with six (6) concerning cattle theft.  The 
remaining five (5) cases included one (1) case of Equipment Theft; two (2) cases of Animal 
Cruelty; one (1) case of Transporting of Feral Hogs and one (1) Larceny of Property (ATV).   
Special Agents closed six (6) investigations.   
 
 
The breakdown of the new cases for the current reporting period is as follows: 
 
Cattle Theft Investigations 
Bryan County             40 head 
Craig County                                1 head 
Kay County                                46 head 
Noble County                               5 head  
 
 
Others 
Custer County - Larceny of Property (ATV) 
Okemah County – Possible Illegal Transport of Feral Hogs 
Okfuskee/Lincoln Counties – Larceny of Equipment 
Oklahoma County – Animal Cruelty (Horse Stabbing) 
Sequoyah County – Animal Cruelty  
 
 
Some of the significant cases investigated during the current reporting period are described 
below.                                         

************************* 

On May 22nd, a burglary occurred in Chandler, Oklahoma at the Oklahoma Conservation 
Commission District Office.  Taken in this burglary were approximately $200,000 thousand 
dollars’ worth of heavy equipment such as a John Deere Skid Steer, mower, truck, welder, tools 
and trailers.  The stolen heavy equipment was stolen by thieves using the Ford F350 
Conservation flatbed truck.  Col. Jerry Flowers and Special Agents of the ODAFF were asked to 
investigate this crime to see if suspects could be developed as well as locate the stolen property.   
 
Agents immediately began investigating this crime and developed a suspect who had been 
working at the Chandler Conservation Commission facility as part time help.  The investigation 
led Special Agents to Castle, Oklahoma and then Okemah on May 27th, where agents learned the 
stolen property that belonged to the Oklahoma Conservation Commission had been hidden in a 
wooded area south of Okemah.  Special Agents and OSBI Agent Kurt Titsworth found the stolen 
Conservation Commission equipment in a very isolated area and recovered most of the stolen 
property taken from the Chandler facility.  During the course of this investigation, Special 
Agents executed two search warrants at three locations in the town of Okemah.  During the 
execution of the search warrants, agents found several thousand dollars’ worth of property 
believed to be stolen from central and east central Oklahoma.  During the execution of one of the 
search warrants, Special Agents found one suspect to be in possession of a sawed-off, 12 gauge 
shotgun, along with methamphetamines.  This suspect, Brent Welkley, was arrested and placed 



A - 4 
 

into the Okfuskee County Jail for receiving and concealing stolen property, possession of a 
sawed-off shotgun, possession of drug paraphernalia and possession of Methamphetamines.   
 
Special Agents with the ODAFF along with OSBI Agents, Okfuskee County Sheriff Deputies 
and Okemah Police Officers have found unrelated stolen property in the possession of three of 
the suspects that will lead to an abundance of felony charges to be presented in weeks to come 
against them.  The investigation has uncovered a stolen truck that had been stripped and in the 
possession of one of the suspects.  This particular suspect owned this truck, but had reported it 
stolen at the first of the year.  He had been paid a large sum of insurance money for his reported 
loss.  Agents found this truck and it had not been stolen, but stripped and hid.  Insurance fraud is 
a felony and this suspect will be prosecuted for this crime.  Special Agents also found one 
unrelated suspect in this investigation to be in possession of a stolen Chevy truck from Kansas 
and this person was also wanted on felony warrants for kidnapping out of Okfuskee County.  He 
was arrested by agents and turned over to the County sheriff.    
 
On Monday, 6-20-16, Agents executed five arrest warrants in Okfuskee County.  Five suspects 
were arrested and booked into jail.  During the arrest, one suspect told agent’s where we could 
find the Lincoln 225 welder that was stolen from Chandler.  Agents found the welder in a 
wooded area south of Okemah and returned it back to the Conservation Commission.  The Ford 
F-350 state truck was found on the 21st in a wooded area in Okmulgee County.  The truck had 
been stripped and burned.   
 
All in all, Special Agents and officers have, as of Friday, 6-24-16, recovered the following items. 
 

1. 35 foot gooseneck trailer, owner Commission 

2. JD Skid Steer, owner Conservation Commission 

3. JD Gator, owner  Conservation Commission 

4. JD ZTR Mower, owner Conservation Commission 

5. Air compressor, owner  Conservation Commission 

6. Stolen 2005 Ford F250 King Ranch truck, private owner 

7. Stolen 98 Chevy pickup truck, private owner in Kansas 

8. Stolen Long Farm tractor and Rhino brush cutter, owner local farmer in Okfuskee County 

9. Stolen dump trailer, private owner, stolen from Oklahoma County 

10. Stolen tires and wheels, owner is a business in Okfuskee County 

11. Truckloads of miscellaneous auto parts and equipment, owners being sought by the 
sheriff’s department investigators. 

12. Ford F-350 Oklahoma Conservation Commission truck ( stripped and burned) 



A - 5 
 

13. Miscellaneous saws and tools 

14. Numerous stolen items from counties in and around Okfuskee County. 

 
Felony charges have been presented to the Okfuskee County District Attorney and Lincoln 
County District Attorney for Conspiracy, Burglary, Possession of Illegal Weapons, Possession of 
Narcotics, and Possession of Stolen Property.   
 
A special thank you to Sheriff Derrall Summers, Okfuskee County Sheriff’s Department, Special 
Agent Kurt Titsworth, the Okemah Police Department, Special Agent’s Dusty Goforth, S/A 
Patrick Blake, S/A Ricky Rushing, S/A Jason (Cadillac) Smith and S/A Doug Elliott for their 
hard work and determination in helping to bring this case to a close.   
 
 
 
 

 



A - 6 
 

 



A - 7 
 



A - 8 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



A - 9 
 

                               *************************************** 
 
 

 
   
 
2.  Special Agent Paul Cornett completed an investigation where suspects stole a $13,000 ATV 
from a farm in Arapaho and brought the equipment to Oklahoma City to be sold.  The ATV was 
sold to an ATV shop in OKC to a business owner who became suspicious of the purchase.  The 
business owner was contacted by S/A Paul Cornett and he identified who the suspects were that 
sold him the ATV.  The ATV was recovered by agents and returned back to the owner.  S/A 
Cornett gathered a substantial amount of evidence against three suspects responsible for being in 
possession of the stolen property.  Felony charges were filed against the suspects for Knowing 
Concealing Stolen Property in Oklahoma County. 
 

*************************************** 
 
3.  Col. J. Flowers opened an investigation that is still ongoing.  On May 18th, an unknown 
suspect entered a horse pasture located in North Oklahoma City.  The suspect found three quarter 
horses in the small lot.  The suspect caught one of the horses named “Apache Sunrise” and led 
him into a stall.  The suspect, for unknown reasons, stabbed the horse five times in the neck with 
an 8 inch knife cutting the juggler veins and killing the animal.  The owner of the horse has no 
idea who is responsible for the killing.  The investigation has led me to interview numerous 
people who live in the area where the horses were being kept, but no leads have developed.  This 
investigation is far from being closed.  More interviews will be conducted in days to come.   



A - 10 
 

*************************************** 
 
4.  Special Agent Smith and Flowers were working in Okfuskee County when we stopped a truck 
and trailer transporting feral hogs in the county.  The driver of the vehicle did not have his 
transporters license on him at the time of the stop.  It was determined by Animal Industry the 
driver did have a transporters license issued to him and it was current.  The driver was issued a 
verbal warning to have the transporters permit with him when transporting feral hogs in this 
state.  No arrests were made.  
 
 

                 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

                



A - 11 
 

Investigative Services CY2016 Activities 

 

             MAY          YTD 
Investigations     

 Cattle            6     29 

Fire             0     10 

Property            2     12 

Timber             0           0 

Other             3         10_ 

Total Investigations Opened                  11     61 

 

            Completed Pending Additional Information    1   14 

No Crime     1   16 

No Prosecution Required     0     4 

Presented to District Attorney for Prosecution    4   16 

Referred for Administrative Action    0        0       
Total Investigations Completed     6   50 

 
Counts Filed                                                                            23                              306 

Value of losses        $305,000.00    $762,500.00 

Recovered losses $197,500.00 $626,972.00  

Number of cattle reported stolen 92 275 

Number of cattle recovered                                                   25                              154 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



A - 12 
 

OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, 
FOOD, AND FORESTRY 

 

 
 

Reported Statistics as of May, 2016 
(Comparisons to 2015 are for the same time frame) 

 
 

• Number of cattle reported stolen thru May 31th, 2016   275 

• Recovery percent on cattle 2016*      56% 

• Number of cattle stolen through May, 2015    354 

• Percent decrease from 2015 to 2016      28% 

• Number of criminal investigations we have opened in 2016  61 

• Number of criminal investigations we have closed in 2016  50 

• Number of felony charges we have filed in 2016            306 

• Arsons / Wildfires investigated in 2016     10 

• Timber thefts investigated 2016        0 

• Value of losses reported up to May 31, 2016       $762,500.00 

• Value of losses reported up to May 31, 2015       $764,050.00 

• Percent decrease from May 2015 to May 2016                    .002% 

*Recovery includes cattle located, but not returned to victim.  Restitution should be made to victim. 































































 
B1 

 

JULY 2016 BOARD REPORT 
AGRICULTURE LABORATORY SERVICES 

(May 2016 Activities) 
 

 
DAIRY/FOOD SAFETY SECTION: (Sharon Swyear, Environmental/Chemical Laboratory 
Scientist IV) 
 
May was a routine testing month for the Dairy Program. The FDA requires monthly analysis of 
dairy products four times within a six month period.  There were no antibiotic or aflatoxin 
violations this month.  The Food Safety testing in May consisted of 10 E. coli (STEC), 16 
Salmonella and eight Listeria tests with no violations. 
 
Interviews were conducted to fill the supervisor position that Brian McDowell vacated in April. 
Sharon Swyear will start officially as the supervisor of the Section on June 1, 2016.  Sharon has 
been an analyst for the Laboratory for three years.  Interviews for the analyst position that 
Sharon will vacate are planned for June.   

0
200
400
600
800

1000
1200
1400

Jan Feb March April May June July August Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec.

Total Determinations

CY14

CY15

CY16

 
 

Revenue Breakdown 

$2,081.00

$4,160.00

$8,380.00

$14,810.00

Actual Invoiced

Billed by I.L.

Other

Unbilled

 
 
 
 
 
 

Dairy Farms Tested

123

18

Completed In-house
Completed Out of State
Not Completed



 
B2 

 

OKLAHOMA BUREAU OF STANDARDS: (Jeremy Nading, Metrologist IV) 
 
The Section is planning for Sartorius, a balance manufacturer, to be on-site in June to upgrade 
and update the CCR Robotic Balance.  The balance was purchased in 2007 to develop Mass 
Echelon I calibrations by removing the human element of the measurements.  It greatly improves 
the accuracy of the measurements by performing a larger number of comparisons than a human 
could do during work hours.   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

# Fees % of Fees # Standards 
% of 

Standards 

Out-of-State Customers 11 $5,886 27 81 8 
In-State Customers 26 $15,845 73 893 92 

Totals 37 $21,731  974  
 



 
B3 

 

SEROLOGY SECTION: (Pete Bourns, Clinical/Laboratory Scientist IV)  
 
Brucellosis testing on cattle, swine, deer, buffalo, llamas, alpacas, goat samples, and other 
exotics submitted totaled 1,102 samples in May, of which there were 59 A.I.S. state request 
samples. There were 815 swine samples, all of which were billable.  There were no feral pigs or 
slaughter pigs, and no A.I.S. sale-barn swine samples requested.  
 
No milk samples were submitted for the Brucella Ring test. There were twelve screen test 
positive Brucellosis samples that required further confirmation testing and all were determined to 
be negative.   
 
Pseudorabies samples submitted totaled 815 samples. There were no slaughter pigs, stockyard 
pigs, or feral pigs, and no A.I.S. requested samples. There were fourteen samples that screen 
tested positive, but were determined to be negative after retesting.      
 
EIA test samples submitted for May totaled eight samples.  There was one field positive for EIA 
that was determined negative after confirmation testing.  There were nine of the 43 samples that 
were A.I.S. state request samples and therefore, not billable.   
 
 

3-year Summary of Samples Analyzed - 
May 

Year Brucellosis Pseudorabies E.I.A. 
2016 1,102 815 8 
2015 1,198 858 54 
2014 1,610 799 55 
 
 

 
 



 
B4 

 

PESTICIDE SECTION:  (Steven Moser, Environmental/Chemical Laboratory Scientist IV) 
 
Pesticide Section by the numbers: 
 

 Category Counts    
 Number Test Det  Matrix Average TAT 

Concentrate 27 60 60  Concentrate 87.63 days 
Termiticide 13 13 13  Termiticide 106.23 days 

Pollution H2O 12 12 98  Pollution H2O 232 days 
Tank Mix 6 12 29  Tank Mix 176.83 days 
PT Water 6 7 48  PT Water 28.33 days 

IFA 4 4 4  IFA 70.25 days 
Organic Act 1 1 1  Organic Act 44 days 

Other 5 10 10  Other 7 days 
 

 
Samples the Section received each month and the numbers for May: 

 
 
 

Samples Received By Type Samples Received By Matrix 

  



 
B5 

 

As the chart above shows, the number of samples received in May is about a third of the number 
from last year and just less than the three year average.  The Section continues to work on a 
backlog of samples that were received earlier in the year and has made significant strides in the 
last couple of months. 
 
The spring rush of samples officially started with the Section’s first drift sample on May 27th.  It 
was delayed this year due to the large amount of rain which can interrupt spraying. 

 

SEED SECTION: (Wade Krivanek, State Seed Program Administrator) 

The Section finished May with a total of 237 samples received.  Most of the samples were 
submitted by CPS inspectors for regulatory testing.  Turnaround time for the Section remained 
sufficient considering the amount of work received.  Crop types continue to consist of primarily 
cotton, sorghum, soybeans, and turf grasses.   
 
Wheat harvest reports for certified seed acres are showing good results thus far.  Dryer weather 
conditions indicate the storability for seed should be improved compared to years past with 
moisture averaging approximately 11%.  As of now there are no indicators that there will be any 
quality issues with seed this fall. 
 
Testing on official regulatory samples resulted in numerous Seed Law violations being 
discovered.  Three tons of sorghum, two tons of cotton and 500 pounds of tall fescue seed were 
placed under stop sale due to germination discrepancies.  
 
 
INORGANIC SECTION: (Elena Lyon, Environmental/Chemical Laboratory Scientist IV) 
 
In May 2016, the Section completed 118 samples consisting of 392 determinations, with the 
following breakdown: 
    

May 2016 Inorganic Breakdown 
Customer Samples Determinations 

OCC 68 260 
LMFO 9 54 
OWRB 37 49 
Service 3 24 
Official 1 5 

Total 118 392 
  
 
 
 
 



 
B6 

 

One of the instruments in the Section started failing quality measures.  Between the mechanical 
efforts of the Technical Manager, the Section Supervisor, and an analyst, it has been performing 
closer to performance specificiations.  There is a preventative maintanance appointment 
scheduled in June to get the instrument back to full working order.   
 
 
GENERAL CHEMISTRY SECTION: (Ryan Lerch, Environmental/Chemical Laboratory 
Scientist IV) 
 
The Section continues to provide assistance to other areas of the Laboratory.  This month, one 
Laboratory Technician  assisted  the Inorganic Section four days per week with glassware 
washing and sample preparation. 
 
The Section supervisor notified the Laboratory toward the end of the month that he would be 
resigning in just over three weeks.  He will be going to work for the Oklahoma Department of 
Environmental Quality as an auditor for the Laboratory Accreditation Program.  Ryan Lerch has 
been a dedicated employee for over 10 years as both an analyst and as a supervisor.  Interviews 
to fill Ryan’s position will take place in June and the position will hopefully be filled in early 
July.    
 
Overview of Section numbers for the month: 
 

 Feed Fertilizer Lime Total 

Samples Received 85 61 3 149 

Samples Completed 88 56 4 148 

Determinations 250 201 24 475 

Violations 34 33 3 60 

Violation % 13.60% 16.42% 12.50% 12.63% 

 
 
 
QUALITY MANAGEMENT SECTION: (Emily Curry, Quality Manager) 
 
The routine distribution of quality control samples to respective sections of the Laboratory 
continued.  Collection and submission of data to the respective study groups for statistical 
analysis was conducted.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
B7 

 

Performance Test Logs for May 2016:  
 

General Chemistry 

PT Samples Received 4 
Number of Analytes 32
PT Samples Reported 2 
Number of Analytes Reported 3 
Completed PT Reports 5 
Number of Analytes Passed 23

Number of Analytes Failed 0 

Food and Dairy  

PT Samples Received 0 
Number of Analytes 0 
PT Samples Reported 0 
Number of Analytes Reported 0 
Completed PT Reports 2 
Number of Analytes Passed 3 

Number of Analytes Failed 0 

Pesticide 

PT Samples Received 0 
Number of Analytes 0 
PT Samples Reported 4 
Number of Analytes Reported 41
Completed PT Reports 0 
Number of Analytes Passed 0 

Number of Analytes Failed 0 

 
   
 
 
 
 Respectfully Submitted, 
 

  
 Tanna Kilpatrick 
 Director, Laboratory Services Division 



LA
B

O
R

A
TO

R
Y 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 D

IV
IS

IO
N

R
EV

EN
U

E 
G

EN
ER

A
TI

O
N

 F
O

R
 F

Y1
6

R
ef

le
ct

s 
B

ill
ed

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 M
on

th
 

FY
15

FY
16

R
ev

en
ue

 C
od

e
Fu

nc
tio

n 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
To

ta
l

B
ud

ge
t

Ju
l-1

5
A

ug
-1

5
Se

p-
15

O
ct

-1
5

N
ov

-1
5

D
ec

-1
5

Ja
n-

15
Fe

b-
15

M
ar

-1
5

A
pr

-1
5

M
ay

-1
5

Ju
n-

15
To

ta
l

59
0

G
en

er
al

 C
he

m
is

try
 T

es
tin

g
3,

30
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
24

3.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

    
15

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

90
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

29
7.

00
$ 

   
   

   
19

4.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

13
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

36
3.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

    
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

1,
55

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

45
3

S
ee

d 
Te

st
in

g 
Fe

es
40

,5
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
35

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

89
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
8,

31
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

7,
64

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

07
0.

00
$ 

   
  

73
4.

00
$ 

   
   

   
1,

44
1.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

66
8.

00
$ 

   
   

  
4,

74
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
2,

35
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

67
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

18
4.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
33

,7
24

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  

59
2

P
es

tic
id

e 
Te

st
in

g
2,

17
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

    
27

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
35

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
    

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

    
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

62
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

59
4

In
or

ga
ni

c 
Te

st
in

g
20

7,
20

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
35

7,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

35
,7

62
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

31
,8

82
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
20

,7
48

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

24
,3

51
.0

0
$ 

   
9,

06
2.

00
$ 

   
   

38
,0

74
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
37

,7
69

.0
0

$ 
   

23
,6

61
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

44
,1

40
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

14
,8

72
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

8,
27

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

28
8,

59
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   

45
2

B
ur

ea
u 

of
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

24
2,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

30
0,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
18

,3
93

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
18

,8
46

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

17
,0

70
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
24

,2
70

.0
0

$ 
   

26
,8

77
.0

0
$ 

   
 

25
,7

27
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
16

,6
51

.0
0

$ 
   

36
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
,9

60
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

46
,1

65
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

21
,7

31
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

24
9,

05
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   

45
1

S
er

ol
og

y 
Te

st
in

g
15

0,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
25

0,
20

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

16
,0

33
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

6,
05

4.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
11

,7
79

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

11
,2

61
.0

0
$ 

   
10

,1
89

.0
0

$ 
   

 
12

3,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
25

,5
34

.0
0

$ 
   

11
,1

34
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

5,
54

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

7,
27

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

10
,1

36
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

23
8,

44
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   

44
9

D
ai

ry
/F

oo
d 

S
af

et
y

17
,5

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

33
,1

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
69

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

2,
38

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

46
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
36

4.
00

$ 
   

  
1,

20
2.

00
$ 

   
   

2,
33

3.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

76
2.

00
$ 

   
  

2,
05

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

2,
91

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

2,
61

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

2,
50

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

26
,2

73
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

31
0

Fa
x 

Fe
es

1,
20

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
20

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

81
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
    

13
4.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
65

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

55
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

52
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

31
7.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
13

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

65
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
    

57
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

23
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

26
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

O
th

er
 S

ou
rc

es
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
    

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
    

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
    

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

    
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

    
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

    

To
ta

l
66

4,
37

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
97

8,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

77
,0

97
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

67
,6

14
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
60

,1
93

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

63
,4

61
.0

0
$ 

   
48

,7
63

.0
0

$ 
   

 
19

1,
58

6.
00

$ 
   

   
83

,5
89

.0
0

$ 
   

42
,1

60
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

88
,3

35
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

72
,6

19
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

43
,8

49
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

    
72

2,
79

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

A
ge

nc
y 

Te
st

in
g 

N
ot

 B
ill

ed
   

  C
P

S
56

,2
08

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
32

,0
22

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

39
,7

94
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
38

,6
45

.0
0

$ 
   

46
,2

77
.0

0
$ 

   
 

65
,4

05
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
30

,2
65

.0
0

$ 
   

66
,2

30
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

53
,3

83
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

21
,9

42
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

24
,7

39
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

47
4,

91
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  A
IS

30
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
    

37
.5

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
49

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

85
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
2,

01
5.

00
$ 

   
   

17
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
32

9.
00

$ 
   

   
  

11
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

31
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

64
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
17

5.
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

   
  F

oo
d 

S
af

et
y

11
,4

79
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

12
,3

61
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
12

,0
21

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

10
,2

82
.0

0
$ 

   
16

,4
10

.0
0

$ 
   

 
7,

29
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

17
,2

40
.0

0
$ 

   
15

,1
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
16

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
2,

44
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
15

,7
70

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
13

6,
99

3.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  T

ot
al

67
,7

17
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

44
,4

20
.5

0
$ 

   
   

  
52

,3
05

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

49
,7

77
.0

0
$ 

   
64

,7
02

.0
0

$ 
   

 
72

,8
65

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

47
,8

34
.0

0
$ 

   
81

,4
40

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
70

,1
71

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
24

,6
98

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
41

,1
49

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

61
7,

07
8.

50
$ 

   
   

   

B
8



FEED SAMPLES 85
FEED DETERMINATIONS 250
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 34

FERTILIZER SAMPLES 61
FERTILIZER DETERMINATIONS 201
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 33

LIME SAMPLES 3
LIME DETERMINATIONS 24
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 3

PESTICIDE SAMPLES 74
PESTICIDE DETERMINATIONS 263
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 0

MEAT SAMPLES 0
MEAT DETERMINATIONS 0
VIOLATIONS 0

INORGANIC LAB SAMPLES 118
DETERMINATIONS 392

STATE-FEDERAL VET. LAB. SAMPLES 1925
STATE-FEDERAL VET. LAB. DETERMINATIONS 2916
NUMBER POSITIVES 1

SEED SAMPLES 250
SEED DETERMINATIONS 250
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 3

BUREAU OF STANDARDS CERTIFICATES 122
NUMBER OF STANDARDS CALIBRATED 974
FEE CHARGES $21,731.00

DAIRY SAMPLES 326
DAIRY DETERMINATIONS 872
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 2

TOTAL SAMPLES 2964
TOTAL DETERMINATIONS 6142
TOTAL POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 76

BOARD REPORT
AGRICULTURAL LABORATORY SERVICES

MAY 2016 ACTIVITIES

B9



C-1 
 

 
 

July 2016 
 

OKLAHOMA FORESTRY SERVICES BOARD REPORT 
 

                           Conserving, enhancing and protecting the forest resources of Oklahoma for present and future generations 

 
We are in the process of changing our board report format to better reflect the priorities of the National Cohesive 
Wildland Fire Management Strategy which include Resilient Landscapes, Fire Adapted Communities, and Safe and 
Effective Wildfire Response. 
 
RESILIENT LANDSCAPES 
 
Landowner Assistance Programs 

 
Expiring Stewardship Plans.  The list of expiring stewardship plans has been sent out to each of the district offices and is 
comprised of plans that will be retiring within the current and next fiscal year.  Stewardship plans need to be revised 
every 10 years, if not sooner, to remain active in the Forest Stewardship Program.  To be revised, a forester revisits the 
property and updating the plan based off of current landowner objectives, current forest conditions, and future 
stewardship recommendations.  Currently 14 landowners are having or have already had their plans updated totaling 
1570 acres. 

 
Forest Stewardship Program Geodatabase.  GIS Specialist Ryan Baldrachi has updated the master geodatabase for the 
Forest Stewardship Program.  This database is a spatial representation of all of the active stewardship plans across state.  
The field foresters send in their areas database twice a year in order for it all to be compiled into one map.  This 
information is then used as a way to report Oklahoma Forestry Services accomplishments to the Forest Service, to aid in 
the display of forest lands under active management, and show the impact this agency is having on aiding the private 
landowners throughout Oklahoma. 

 
Southern Pine Beetle Cost Share.  Currently Oklahoma Forestry Services is aiding six landowners, spanning 420 acres, 
with the prevention of southern pine beetle.  Furthermore, five new landowners, spanning 460 acres are in the process 
of applying for this program.  One landowner has recently completed his thinning on 60 acres.  This native pest targets 
overstocked pine stands so the program encourages landowners to thin their pine stands, thus reducing the ideal 
habitat for the beetle.  
 
Update of OFARS.  The Oklahoma Forestry Accomplishment Reporting System (OFARS) is currently being updated to 
make it more efficient and detailed.  Several foresters continue to contribute their thoughts, concerns, and 
recommendations for the new form of OFARS.  The newest update includes an efficient way to measure multiple visits 
to the same landowner, dropdown menus with a number of forest health issues that might be present, and a few data 
fields for organization such as case numbers for each landowner. 

 
The new system utilizes mobile tablets or smartphones already possessed by the field foresters to report their 
accomplishments immediately.  The mobile ability of these devices allows the reports to be created in the field using a 
pre-made form downloaded onto the device.  The foresters will be able to fill in the basic information of the landowner 
assisted and the nature of the assist as well as which OFS program it relates to.  The form can be submitted as soon as 
the forester has cellular access and will include the spatial location for the assist.  This information can be downloaded 
at any time and uploaded onto a map.  The geospatial features of this update will increase efficiency when reporting our 
accomplishments associated with our various grants to the US Forest Service each year. 

 



C-2 
 

Primary Wood Products Producers Directory.  Staff Forester Dieter Rudolph updated the directory of wood producers in 
Oklahoma.  This directory is used as a tool to help landowners find the nearest mill to their property in order to aid them 
with finding a buyer for the timber on their property. Producers volunteer to be on this list in order to advertise their 
services to the smaller landowners who might not know that it can be economically as well as environmentally beneficial 
to manage their forest lands. 
 
Nursery and Tree Improvement 
 
Forest Regeneration Center.   The State Nursery is currently focused to grow seedlings.  We had a small window the first 
of May to finish this year’s planting between rain events.  Now tree and shrub seedlings are really growing, it looks like 
we will have a really good crop this year.                       
 
Containerized Seedlings.  All the container grown seedlings are looking pretty good.  As stated before we increased the 
number of loblolly plugs and so far they look good.  There are a lot of treatments being tested and research studied to 
improve containerized root quality.   
  
Forest Tree Improvement Center.  FTIC is preparing to collect next year’s cone crop.  We are only going to collect the 
highest gain seed sources and it looks like we should have a good cone collection year.  FTIC is in the process of growing 
another advancing front of loblolly pine.  Families were selected based not only on increased growth and volume but 
also form.            
 
Water Quality  
 
Water Quality Forester.  We had another applicant for our Water Quality Forester and he declined our job offer.  So we 
continue to look to fill this position.   
 
BMP Revision.  We are planning to have a few BMP Workshops in Southeast Oklahoma to inform Oklahomans of 
changes in our 2016 BMP guidelines.  This is a big part of our program to educate loggers, landowners, forest industry 
and private consultants who routinely harvest timber.  Our BMP Program is a voluntary program, so we encourage open 
dialogue to discuss changes and ensure understanding.  Most Oklahomans are very receptive to protecting water 
quality.     
 
Forest Health 
 
Ips Beetle Aerial Detection.  Staff Forester Dieter 
Rudolph had begun working with the Ouachita 
National Forest to aid them in aerial detection of 
ips beetle damage in their area.  Traditionally, the 
ips beetle has not been a species of significant 
concern due to its lower impact (in comparison to 
southern pine beetle) on the forested stand as 
well as its higher difficulty in preventing it.  This 
beetle is native to our area and has always been 
present; however the past year has had an 
outbreak being called on an “unprecedented 
scale” according to area entomologists.  Salvage 
harvests on stands with increased mortality from 
the ips beetle are being performed across the 
southeastern counties.   

 
Screen shot of the DMSM program in use during an aerial survey 



C-3 
 

The National Forest has had a large area of ips mortality to the north of Broken Bow Lake and they are seeking our help 
to map out the area so that it can be contained and salvaged.  During this time, Oklahoma Forestry Services will be test 
running our new aerial survey system, Digital Mobile Sketch Mapping (DMSM) utilizing tablets allowing for the areas of 
mortality to be drawn onto an aerial image that is georeferenced to the planes current location.  This data can be then 
uploaded onto mapping software to capture all of the information gathered during the aerial surveys. 
 
Forest Inventory and Analysis (FIA) 
 
FIA Update.  FIA crews have finished the 2015 Inventory.  Currently, FIA has begun data collection in eastern Oklahoma 
for the 2016 Inventory year.  Some of our success is due to having Dieter Rudolph, OKC Staff Forester, help FIA Crews for 
a week.  As a result, he helped FIA crews get some plots done and maintained his FIA certification.  We also hired a 
temporary intern to help collect data.  Regretfully, FIA has taken another reduction in force with Riley Cloud resigning 
and taking a job with the Federal Government.   
 
FIA Foresters attended a training meeting on May 17-18th.  FIA foresters from Oklahoma, Arkansas, and Louisiana met in 
Broken Bow to update skills necessary to collect data on the P2+ plots where vegetation, down woody debris, and crown 
measurements are added to 1/16th of all assigned research plots.  In addition to the P2+ training, Oklahoma FIA crews 
updated their data collection skills on timber harvest sites to track timber utilization or Timber Product Output (TPO).  
Instructors from Knoxville, Tennessee, conducted the two-day training sessions. 
 
Urban and Community Forestry  
 
Ice Storm Recovery.  On June 22 Mark met with residents of 
Brookhaven Neighborhood in Oklahoma City to help with the ongoing 
tree damage recovery resulting from the November 2015 ice storm.  A 
number of trees throughout the neighborhood sustained structural 
damage and residents are actively trying to rehabilitate impacted trees.  
The neighborhood and its residents continue to reduce risk through 
proper pruning and necessary removals. Two days after his visit a large 
branch in a bur oak identified that sustained damage failed near the 
main trunk.  See the photo right for the crack and below for the photos 
of the tree before and after the branch failure.   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



C-4 
 

Mark continued discussions and planning with Ashley Dickson of the Oklahoma City Neighborhood Alliance on June 21st 
in preparation for a 2016 Fall planting of approximately 350 large trees in the cities of Moore, Oklahoma City and Bethel 
Acres located near Shawnee.  This is intended to continue with the storm recovery replacing the tree canopy lost during 
the May 2013 tornado outbreak. The partnership includes the Lions Club and United Way of Central Oklahoma and is 
part of their NeighborRoots program. 
 

Oklahoma Gardening.  On June 11th OFS Urban Forester Mark Bays and 
Brian Daugherty of the Oklahoma City Community Foundation (OCCF) 
appeared on the weekend gardening show Oklahoma Gardening 
discussing the tree inventory project that OFS and OCCF are helping fund.  
Davey Research Company is being contracted to conduct a 100% tree 
inventory of all city parks in Oklahoma City.  This will help the city be in a 
better position to identify risks and improve their tree management 
program. Pictured left is Joseph showing how the tree data is collected 
and entered in the system. 
 
 
 

 
Educational Activities  
 

Project Learning Tree Workshop at Myriad Gardens Educators from across 
the state attend a PLT workshop at the Myriad Gardens on May 21st, 
2016. Activities from the preK-8th grade environmental education 
curriculum which uses forests as a “window to the world”  were model 
during the workshop. Pictured left are participanting educators displaying 
the “Tree Factory” activity. 
 
 
 
 
 

Oklahoma County Natural Resource Day Education Coordinator, Jeri Irby, 
presented at the Spring 2016 Oklahoma County Natural Resource Day 
were over 80 4th grade students learned about the importance of natural 
resources. Students learned about the different parts of trees, the forest 
they live in and how to be good stewards of the land. Pictured right our 
students building a tree.  

 
 
 
International Project Learning Tree Conference Jeri Irby attended the 
International Project Learning Tree Conference in Salt Lake City, Utah 
May 23rd-27th, 2016. Jeri and Oklahoma Green Schools Coordinator, 
Sara Ivey, presented during the conference on the partnership of the 
OK PLT and OK Green Schools program. The presentation also inculded 
a detailed look at Oklahoma’s unique PLT and Green Schools joint 
workshop.  
 
 

 



C-5 
 

 
 
 
60th Annual Oklahoma Forestry Camp  Forty-five campers attended the 60th Annual Oklahoma Forestry Camp. Campers 
learned about forests, wildlife, water, and soils from our states natural resource professionals. The weeklong camp also 
took campers to the Red Slough Wildlife Management Area to learn about the natural resource management wildlife 
biologist conduct. At the WMA campers saw numerous birds and an 8 foot long alligator! The week wrapped up with a 
field trip to Carter Mountain Fire Tower where campers learned about wildland fire protection and suppression. Over 10 
ODAFF staff members assited in implementing the Forestry Camp including this years Forestry and Market Development 
Interns. 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



C-6 
 

  
Tulsa Community College Early Childhood Conference Jeri Irby presented a session on PLT’s 
Environmental Experiences for Early Childhood curriculum at the Tulsa Community College 
Early Childhood Conference on June 18, 2016. Participants were introduced with research on 
why environmental education and outside play is crucial to the development of children and 
then went through one of the activities in the curriculum. Participants made shape necklaces, 
binoculars, and fruit shape kabobs during the activity to demonstrate how to teach identifying 
shapes in the natural world.  
 
 
Promotion/Information/Events   
 

• Assisted with the National Association of State Foresters (NASF) Wildfire Committee 
Meeting that took place in Oklahoma City on May 25 & 26.  Communications managed hotel and meeting 
logistics and planned a trip for the committee to NewView Oklahoma to meet and provide appreciation to the 
visually impaired employees who make all of the fire hose for the US Forest Service and others.  (see photos 
below.)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



C-7 
 

 
 
 
 
 

• In conjunction with USFS, OFS Communications assisted with a field day for staff representing Congressmen 
Markwayne Mullin and Frank Lucas and Senators 
James Lankford and Jim Inhofe on June 22.  Staff 
spent the day in Broken Bow with George Geissler 
and several USFS representatives visiting the forest 
and learning about forestry issues.  (see phots below) 
 

 
 

• Communications placed ad in the Oklahoma 2016-2017 Hunting & Fishing Regulation Guide promoting seedling 
sales and Firewise homes.  The guide comes out on July 1. 

• Social media was utilized to promote and engage our audiences on a variety of topics, including Forestry Youth 
Camp, our attendance at the Southern Group of State Foresters, fire safety and forest health.  

 
FIRE ADAPTED COMMUNITIES 
 
Fire Suppression Totals  Below are Fire Suppression Totals for the month of June and total Fire Suppression Response 
from January to June. 

June 2016 OFS Response  2016 OFS YTD Response (Jan-Jun) 
Northeast  4 Fires/40 Acres    281 Fires/11,351 Acres 
East-Central  5 Fires/15.4 Acres   177 Fires/34,086.4 Acres 
Southeast  1 Fires/90 Acres    212 Fires/6,294.7 Acres 
Out of Protection 1 Fires/4 Acres    54 Fires/436,878 Acres 
Totals   11Fires/159.4 Acres   724 Fires/495,621 Acres 
 
While application of prescribed fire has been largely placed on hold in central and western Oklahoma, significant 
progress has been made with implementation of our program to assist private landowners and honor other agreements 
across eastern Oklahoma. 
 



C-8 
 

To date, OFS has applied objective-driven fire management to 4,022 Acres on 24 units.  These figures exclude acres 
that have been treated on US Forest Service where we have capitalized on an agreement that results in compensation 
for our personnel and equipment.  
 
Fire Operations Summary  Fire occurrence, complexity and severity that taxed both Oklahoma Forestry Services and 
local fire departments across Oklahoma during winter and early spring were halted by consistent and wide-spread rains 
as the growing season developed.  Adequate live fuel moisture has limited wildfire activity in large part; however dry 
pockets are developing as summer progresses.  
 
The Oklahoma Mesonet maps below illustrate the dry pockets currently developing.

 

 
 



C-9 
 

LeFlore and Latimer Counties are registering KBDI values that indicate the potential for elevated fire severity at this time.  
Ignitions have fortunately remained low during the month of June when timber resources are most at risk for wildfire 
damage.  OFS fire personnel continually monitor fire environment conditions across Oklahoma. 
  
Respectfully submitted, 

 
George Geissler, Director, Oklahoma Forestry Services 



D 1 
 

 
Figure 5: Dead bees found at the 
front of the hive. 

 
Figure 4: Photo of the hives 
affected at the affected apiary. 

JULY 12, 2016 BOARD MEETING 
 

CONSUMER PROTECTION SERVICES DIVISION  
 

REPORT FOR MAY/JUNE 2016 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE AND HORTICULTURE SECTION 
 
Environmental Program 

On May 12, 2016 the Department received a call from the Muldrow 
police department informing us that earlier in the week there was 
an incident involving the theft and poisoning of bee hives at a 
nearby apiary. The Muldrow police stated that people from 
Arkansas had gotten their vehicle stuck at the apiary around 4 a.m. 
one morning and the officer on duty responded to control traffic 
while a wrecker pulled out the stuck vehicle. While the responding 
officer was on site the Arkansas people stated that they were there 
dropping off hives and got their vehicle stuck during the process. 
The police officer was able to write a citation to one individual for 
lacking insurance, so the Muldrow police obtained information on 
the Arkansas people. The Muldrow police notified the apiary owner 
of the situation and met him at the apiary around 9 a.m. that 

morning. While on site the Muldrow police and beekeeper found a bowl of what appeared to be 
“tainted honey” and the beekeeper was concerned that the Arkansas people may have poisoned 
his bees. On May 19, 2016 the Department went to Muldrow to collect 
samples of the “tainted honey” and perform an inspection at the apiary 
to observe the overall health and strength of the affected hives. During 
our investigation at the 64 hive apiary dead bees were observed with 
their tongues sticking out, bees pulling larvae and dead bees out of the 
hives, and 4 of the hives were complete losses. The department 
collected samples of the “tainted honey”, dead bees, and a frame of 
honey from one hive to be analyzed at the pesticide laboratory. The 
collected samples all tested positive for the active ingredient carbaryl, 
the active ingredient found in sevin dust. Upon receiving confirmation 
that the active ingredient carbaryl was found in the samples this 
information was sent to the Muldrow police to aid in their case against 
the Arkansas people. The Muldrow police department is still 
investigating the case.       

 
 



D 2 
 

 

Figure 1: Phil Cross of Fox 25 
television station recording footage 
for his story on Oklahoma bees. 

 

 

 
Figure 2: Jayce Prock, 
Environmental Program 
Manager taking a sample of 
irrigation tailwater leaving 
Greenleaf Nursery. 

Apiary Program 
 
Honey bee swarm season has been active with many calls from 
the public requesting assistance in removing swarms of bees from 
their property.  Most calls are referred to the swarm catcher list 
on the Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food and Forestry 
website.  The swarm catcher list is composed of about 200 
beekeepers throughout the state that will remove bee swarms or 
colonies in structures from people’s property and relocate them to 
a hive where they can be managed for pollination or honey 
production. 
 
Oklahoma City KOKH Fox 25 KOKH bee story 
 
Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food and Forestry Apiary 
Program Manager Dr. Don Molnar was interviewed by Phil Cross 
of KOKH Fox 25 News regarding ODAFF apiary inspection 
program to protect the bee industry.  The interview was 
conducted at the bee yard of longtime beekeeper Sam Cloud.  The 
bee yard is located on the west side of Will Rogers World 
Airport. 
 
The story was aired on June 9, 2016 and a link to the story is listed below. 

http://okcfox.com/news/local/oklahoma-bees-big-deal-for-some-california-crops  

Irrigation Tailwater Project. 
 
 
Dr. Don Molnar, Program Manager and Jayce Prock, Section 
Supervisor traveled to eastern Oklahoma to take samples of any 
irrigation tailwater leaving several large container nurseries near 
the Illinois River and Fort Gibson.  This is a continuation of a 
project that was started in 1989 as the result of a complaint that the 
Illinois River and Lake Tenkiller were being polluted from 
irrigation water returning to the river or lake.  The nurseries 
involved are Greenleaf Nursery, Northland Farms South , Park Hill 
Plants and Trees on the Illinois River and Zelenka Farms (former 
Tri B nursery and Barry Family of Nurseries) near Fort Gibson 
Lake west of Hulbert.  The water sampling in the past was done on 
a monthly basis, then monthly during the growing season and 
recently twice a year due to the increased workload of the lab in 
getting the samples done in a timely manner  
 
 
 

http://okcfox.com/news/local/oklahoma-bees-big-deal-for-some-california-crops


D 3 
 

 
Figure 3: Avian Influenza Map. 

 
Figure 6: tar spot on holly. 

GIS Program 
 
Here are the major GIS accomplishments for May 2016: 
 

• Worked on developing a mobile-mapping, GPS 
application for Avian Influenza preparedness.  Added 
buffers to map for infection sites for AIS. 

• Calculated poultry waste applications statistics in Grand 
Lake Watershed for FOIA request for AEMS. 

• Exported fire occurrence data for National Weather 
Service modeling for Forestry. 

• Participated in Emergency Response exercise with 
outside group. 

• Worked with OMES on personnel data migration to 
CORE system for agency. 

• Represented ODAFF at GIS Data Sharing Workgroup 
meeting. 

• Imported and processed GPS data for scales, pesticide 
facilities and complaints. 

• Attended online GIS training webinars. 
• Worked on installing GIS computer. 
• Continued ongoing training for ODAFF staff in GIS 

software. 
• Completed 32 work requests and worked on 10 others. 

 
Plant Protection Program 
 
2016 Landscape Disease & Pest Workshop 

Jeanetta Cooper, Program Administrator, and James Branham, John 
Nunnery, Joe Rackley, and Nick Prince, nursery field inspectors 
attended the Landscape Disease & Pest Workshop conducted by the 
Oklahoma State Plant Disease & Insect Identification Laboratory on 
June 22, 2016 at the Tulsa Garden Center.  Those attending the 
workshop learned to identify and manage current pests of concern 
such as crape myrtle scale and rose rosette disease and emerging 
plant diseases such as tar spot on holly, Japanese pear rust, oak itch 
mite, and others, and how to properly collect, store and submit samples.      



D 4 
 

 
Figure 7: Oak itch mite gall on a pin 
oak tree.  Oak itch mite uses Fly 
larvae for its host  but when their 
populations are low the mites seek 
an alternative host such as humans. 

 
Figure 8: Rose samples used to test 
participants knowledge and skills 
in diagnosing rose rosette virus. 

The presentation on major pine diseases in Oklahoma featured 
pine wilt, diplodia tip blight, dothitroma needle blight and how to 
distinguish the differences between disease and drought 
symptoms.  Insect pests reviewed were the Nantucket pine tip 
moth, pine needle scale, pine sawyer beetle, and the red-headed 
pine sawfly.  Examples of the different types of damage caused 
by the diseases and insects were available to observe. 
Recommendations for planting other evergreen species that could 
replace problematic pines in the landscape include: limber pine, 
lacebark pine, junipers, blue Atlas cedar, and broadleaf 
evergreens such as cherry laurel, netleaf oak, magnolia, and 
hollies. 
 
Common oak insects and disease 
problems were another hands-on 
segment of the workshop. Eye-spot, 
anthracnose, botryosphaeria canker, 

bacterial leaf scorch, nectar canker, hypoxylon canker, and 
phytophthora root rot do not often directly kill trees affected, but the 
loss of vitality combined with stress factors can lead to premature 
decline. 

Others attending the workshop were master gardeners, extension 
educators, municipal employees, and garden center and landscape 
company employees. 

Oklahoma Nursery & Landscape Association June Member-Up 

The June member meet-up for ONLA members and board was hosted by the Oklahoma City 
Community Foundation (OCCF) and held at the Margaret Annis Boys Arboretum in Will Rogers 
Park, Oklahoma City.  OCCF provided a $95,000 gift to Oklahoma City, with a gift of $25,800 
from Oklahoma Forestry Services to support a comprehensive tree inventory of all 157 city 
parks, plus trails and medians.  The Tree Inventory Project demonstrated the methods used to 
collect and record the data that will be used for a report that is due at the end of summer.  The 
inventory will include tree species, height, diameter, and plant health.  Measuring the crown 
spread will indicate how much space the tree occupies and assess the value of the tree to the 
environment and the benefit of that tree.  Will Rogers Park features some of the oldest collection 
of trees in Oklahoma City’s botanical history and includes native species as well as specimens 
rarely found in the State. 

Field Activity for May 

Grower Inspections Dealer Inspections Phytosanitary Inspections 
71 90 194 

 
 



D 5 
 

Federal Phytosanitary Certificates Issued in May 
 
Commercial value of shipment $1,250 or more: 
 9 Federal Phytosanitary Certificates issued @ $106.00 each 
 
Commercial value of shipment less than $1,250: 
 1 Federal Phytosanitary Certificates issued @ $61.00 each 
 

Country Product Amount 
Canada Bareroot bulbs** 28 bulbs 
Canada Nursery plants 645 
Italy Bermuda grass seed 1,280 grams 
Japan Sesame seed 1,546,680 pounds 
Spain Sesame seed 32,000 pounds 
Taiwan Mung bean seed 56.45 metric tons 
United Kingdom Mouseear cress seed 1 gram 

 
**Although Federal Phytosanitary Certificates (FPC) are mostly associated with business exports 
to facilitate agricultural trade, a FPC can be issued for personal use.  In this instance, a military 
family being sent to Canada wanted to take with them Asiatic lilies and daylilies that had great 
sentimental value to the family.  The plants were inspected and found free from soil and pests 
and a phytosanitary certificate was issued so the family could relocate the plants at their new 
home in Winnipeg, Manitoba. 
 
State Phytosanitary Certificates Issued in May 
 

185 State Phytosanitary Certificates issued @ $20.00 each 
 

Product State Amount 
Nursery plants Arizona 11 plants 
Nursery plants California 178 plants 
Nursery plants Colorado 22,097 plants 
Nursery plants Idaho 11 plants 
Nursery plants Montana 1 plant 
Nursery plants Nevada 19 plants 
Nursery plants New Mexico 131,891 plants 
Nursery plants Oregon 4 plants 
Nursery plants Utah 13 plants 
Nursery plants Washington 11 plants 
Nursery plants Washington 41 plants 
Bermuda sprigs California 100 sprigs 
Baler Israel 1 piece machinery 
Bulk cotton seed California 25 railcars 



D 6 
 

AGRICULTURE RESOURCES SECTION 
 
Fertilizer Program 
 
Program Performance 
 

REPORTING PERIOD APRIL 30, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 17, 2016 
 

Item 
 

Number 
Notice of 

Deficiency 
Letter of 
Warning 

Stop 
Sale 

Samples 
Deficient 

 
Misc 

Fertilizer Samples 84   1 12  
Lime Samples 5      
Dry Fertilizer 
Facility Inspections 

 
3 

 
 

 
 

   

Liquid Fertilizer 
Facility Inspections 

 
2 

 
1 

 
 

   

Turf Applicator 
Inspections 

 
6 

                       2     

Ammonium Nitrate 
Audits 

 
3 

     

Anhydrous Ammonia 
Dealers 

 
15 

     

Anhydrous Ammonia 
Storage Tank 
Inspections 

 
26 

     

Anhydrous Ammonia 
Nurse Tank 
Inspections 

 
268 

   
 

  

Pre Site Facility 
Inspections 

 
1 

     

 
Soil Fertility Research and Education Advisory Board Meeting 
 
Lance Kunneman, Fertilizer Program Administrator, attended the Soil Fertility Research and 
Education Advisory Board Meeting at the Oklahoma State University agronomy experiment 
station in Stillwater on May 20, 2016.  This advisory board oversees the special research account 
established by statute that requires $.50 of the $1.00 per ton fertilizer inspection fee be deposited 
into the account.  Dr. Bill Raun welcomed everyone to the meeting.  Dr. Jeff Edwards thanked 
everyone for coming and for the continued support of the Plant and Soil Science’s research 
projects.  Dr. Brian Arnall opened the meeting with an overview of the year’s accomplishments 
made possible from funding by the research account. The year resulted in twenty-nine significant 
products including journal publications, degrees, books, book chapters, patents, workshops, web 
sites, grants, classes, and proceedings a few of which I have highlighted below: 
  

• Two additional algorithms developed to use with an I-phone application for use with the Trimble 
Greenseeker Hand Held Crop Sensors that are now sold throughout the world.  

• Hand held GreenSeeker sensors were delivered to county extension offices.   
• Twenty-one refereed journal publications 
• Currently, eighteen graduate student assistantships are funded.  These students are paid $15,660 per year 

and work full time during the summer and part time during the fall and spring semesters.   



D 7 
 

Currently there are twenty-six wheat, sixteen corn, and nine grain sorghum trials ongoing.  
Information on the trials highlighted at the meeting can be found at 
www.nue.okstate.edu/checkoff.htm 
 
Approximately thirty people attended, which included fertilizer dealers, manufacturers, 
producers, faculty, and students.  It was mentioned to hold the meeting in conjunction with 
certified crop consultants meeting to help boost attendance. 

 
Tonnage Reports and Renewals 

 
The semi-annual fertilizer and agricultural lime tonnage reports were mailed June 29th for the 
January 1 through June 30, 2016 reporting period. Specialty fertilizer registration renewals were 
mailed June 29th for the FY2017 registration period.   
 
Feed Program 
 
Program Performance 
 
During this reporting period there were a total of 87 official feed samples analyzed, with 234 
feed determinations made from these samples.  These determinations resulted in the issuance of 
18 violations for feeds or feed ingredients that did not meet established tolerances based on their 
guaranteed analysis.  The majority of these violations were issued for products deficient in crude 
protein.  Violations were also issued for feed products that did not meet their guarantees for 
crude fiber, and vitamin A.  One stop sale order was issued for a feed product with a vitamin A 
deficiency. 
  
The following tables show a two month comparison of label violations and stop sale orders 
issued by the Department for feed products that did not meet their guaranteed analysis. 
 
Table 1. Feed Notice of Label Violation Summary April 2016 – May 2016 
 Number of Label Violations 
Nutritional Guarantee April1 May2 Two Month Total 
Crude Protein 13 16 29 
Non-protein Nitrogen 0 0 0 
Crude Fat 0 0 0 
Crude Fiber 2 1 3 
Calcium 0 0 0 
Phosphorus 0 0 0 
Salt 0 0 0 
Magnesium 0 0 0 
Potassium 0 0 0 
Copper 0 0 0 
Zinc 0 0 0 
Vitamin A 1 1 2 
Medicated Feed 0 0 0 

Total 16 18 34 
186 feed samples analyzed with 197 determinations; 287 feed samples analyzed with 234 determinations  

http://www.nue.okstate.edu/checkoff.htm
http://www.nue.okstate.edu/checkoff.htm


D 8 
 

Table 2. Feed Stop Sale Summary April 2016 – May 2016 
 Number of Stop Sales 
Nutritional Guarantee April1 May2 Two Month Total 
Crude Protein 1 0 1 
Non-protein Nitrogen 0 0 0 
Crude Fat 1 0 1 
Crude Fiber 0 0 0 
Calcium 0 0 0 
Phosphorus 0 0 0 
Salt 0 0 0 
Magnesium 0 0 0 
Potassium 0 0 0 
Copper 0 0 0 
Zinc 0 0 0 
Vitamin A 2 0 2 
Medicated Feed 1 1 2 

Total 5 1 6 
186 feed samples analyzed with 197 determinations; 287 feed samples analyzed with 234 determinations  
 
 
Weights & Measures Program  
 
The large capacity scale technicians inspected 250 vehicle scales, 13 ranch scales, 3 livestock 
scales and 66 platform scales.  There were 30 scales rejected for repairs. 

 
Weights & Measures inspectors checked a total of 1,580 small scales during this period, 29 were 
rejected.  There were 21 random pack inspections and 38 standard pack inspections, 4 received 
letters of warning with only 1 receiving a stop sale order.  Additionally, 95 price verification 
inspections were conducted with a letter of warning issued on 1 of those inspections.  Eleven 
letters of warning was sent to scale companies for not properly servicing the scales.   

 
The weights & measures staff issued 4 device technician licenses and 1 apprentice technician 
license. 
 
 
PESTICIDE SECTION 
 
Pesticide Registration 
 
Pesticide registrations for April-May 2016 are presented in the following chart. A total of 2447 
products were registered, of the products registered 2117 were renewals and 330 were new.  
There were 189 products cancelled.   
 



D 9 
 

      
               
                                                                            
Pesticide Samples 
 
Pesticide samples taken for April-May 2016 are presented in the following chart. A total of 40 
Residue, 13 Documentary, 42 Concentrate, 2 Tank Mix, and 8 Pollution samples were taken.     
 
 

 

0
500

1,000
1,500
2,000
2,500

Total Renew New
Products

Cancelled
Products

2,447 2,117 

330 189 

N
um

be
r o

f R
eg

is
tr

at
io

ns
 

Type of Registration 

Pesticide Registration Activity for      
April - May 2016 

Concentration, 
42 

Documentary, 13 

Residue, 40 

Tank Mix, 2 
Pollution , 8 

Pesticide Sample Submissions for         
April - May 2016 



D 10 
 

        

 
 
Along with the above inspections CPS pesticide inspectors also took 18 nonagriculural use 
samples, 43 agricultural use samples, 30 market place samples and 7 pesticide producing 
establishment samples for a two month total of 98 samples.  The inspectors also participated in 
23 certification and training activities.  These activities include inspector training, CEU 
meetings, test sessions, pesticide applicator training and speaking at meetings. 

Certification & Training Activities 

EPA Region 6 FIFRA Inspector Training 

New Mexico Department of Agriculture hosted the annual Region 6 inspector training May 10th -
13th in Albuquerque, NM.  The training provided a forum for approximately 40 state lead agency 
inspectors and field personnel from Region 6 states to discuss and improve their tools to process 
issues found during field inspections.  The workshop included several topics applicable to site 
inspections and incorporated situations commonly encountered in the field.  Topics of discussion 
included label interpretation, pollinator protection, pesticide safety, and potential environmental 
hazards.  CPS pesticide inspectors Jeremy McReynolds, Damardray Williams, Carlos Williams, 
Rusty Edenborough, and Rusty Patzack attended as well as pesticide inspectors from Texas, New 
Mexico, Louisiana, and Arkansas. 

 

Table 1. Inspection Count for April - May 2016*

Inspection Type April May Two Month Total
Experimental Use Permit 0 0 0
Marketplace 63 59 122
Pesticide Applicator Facility 62 19 81
Pesticide Service Inspection 0 0 0
Restricted Use Pesticide Dealer 13 18 31
Container Containment Inspection 1 2 3
Producer Establishment 1 0 1
Use 79 45 124
Termite 2 0 2
Wood 2 1 3
Pre-treat 0 0 0
Drift Investigation 0 4 4
Pesticide Label 46 38 84
Worker Protection 2 11 13

Total 271 197 468
* Inspections not yet submitted at the time of this report will be reflected in the next board report

Number of Inspections



D 11 
 

 
Figure 6: Defoliated trees caused by pesticide 
drift. 

 
Figure 7: Pesticide damage symptoms on a tree. 

EPA Region 6 States/EPA/CES Bi-annual Meeting 

Ryan Williams and Mike Vandeventer attended the bi-annual States/EPA/CES meeting held 
May 10th -11th, in Albuquerque, NM.   Discussions included the new herbicide technology, 
worker protection standards, pollinator protection and current issues that each state is facing. 
EPA also gave updates on changes to the EPA Grant Guidance.  ODAFF receives between 
$500,000.00 and $600,000.00 annually from EPA to conduct pesticide enforcement, certification 
and training, and other initiative activities ensuring compliance with federal guidelines.  The 
states included in Region 6 include Oklahoma, Texas, Louisiana, Arkansas and New Mexico as 
well as the Cherokee Nation and the Eight Northern Pueblo Indian Council. 
 
Pesticide Complaint Summary 

PESTICIDE COMPLAINTS   May 9, 2016 – June 21, 2016   
  

   
  

  RECEIVED CLOSED 
WARNINGS 

ISSUED 
NO 

ACTION 
CONSUMER GENERATED 41 23 12 11 
ROUTINE INSPECTION 6 12 12 0 
MUSK THISTLE 13 12 9 3 
WORKER PROTECTION 1 0 0 0 
  

   
  

CASES REFERRED TO OGC: 14 
  

  
          

 
 
PESTICIDE DRIFT COMPLAINTS 
 

During the first three weeks in June the Department received 
thirty pesticide drift complaints.  These complaints are spread 
out across the entire state.  Late season applications, high 
temperatures and wind have 
contributed to the increase in 
drift complaints. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 



D 12 
 

 
 

I will be glad to answer any questions from the Board members. 

     
   Kenny M. Naylor 

 



 E - 1 

Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food and Forestry 
Animal Industry Services Board Report 

July 12, 2016 
Activities May 7, 2016 – June 24, 2016 

 
Animal Disease Traceability: 
During this time period, we were notified of a cow tested at a livestock market in Texas 
that was found to be positive for Brucellosis. Texas is still performing surveillance 
Brucellosis testing within certain livestock markets.  The trace back investigation 
revealed this particular cow went through five livestock markets in three different states 
within a two week timeframe before ending up at the Texas livestock market. The other 
complicating factor to this trace was this cow was originally identified in Arkansas and at 
some point lost her AR official identification prior to being sold at an Oklahoma 
livestock market. Per ADT regulations, she was issued OK official identification. The AR 
state veterinarian has been made aware of the status of this cow and will continue tracing 
the animal to her herd of origin. This trace is just an example of how cattle can move 
through livestock markets and how important official identification and capturing it 
correctly at the market proves vital to improve our traceability efforts.  We know she was 
sold at a market in Benton County, AR followed in short order by Stilwell, OK, Joplin, 
MO, LeFlore County, OK, McAlester, OK, and then Gainesville, TX. 
 
During this time period, we assisted Kansas Department of Agriculture with an animal 
movement model project their ADT coordinator is conducting.  
 
On May 12, Dr. Gorczyca met with Ellie Ball, David Lawrence, and Dennis Wigley to 
discuss getting the Civet application for data entry of certificates of veterinary inspection 
operational. This is an application that was supported during the 2014 USAHerds 
enhancement period and has yet to become operational due to issues concerning the 
software program and its integration with ODAFF servers. The discussion also centered 
on expanding Laserfiche capabilities to perform similar functions as what Civet is 
designed to do. However, there is concern that to expand Laserfiche’s capabilities would 
encumber costs that would not be feasible at this time. The group will get together at a 
later date to discuss updates for Civet and Laserfiche.  
 
During this timeframe, AIS’s market 4-54 data entry person Tammy Hagar left to pursue 
another job opportunity. During her absence and prior to her replacement, Callie Devine, 
starting, Dr. Gorczyca was able to get help from USDA APHIS VS animal health 
technicians (AHTs) to help keep market data up to date within USA Herds.  We continue 
to have an AHT to assist us with data entry of market 4-54 data while Callie is continuing 
her on the job training for job duties. 
 
Aquaculture:   
On May 24, Dr. Gorczyca along with Melissa Pearson and Micah Anderson went to 
Langston University with the international visitor from Bangladesh for him to learn about 
aquaculture and goat production in OK. 
 



 E - 2 

On June 22, Dr. Gorczyca received a complaint from a licensed aquaculture producer 
concerning a company buying and selling tilapia. Further information led Dr. Gorczyca to 
believe it was related to the suspected tilapia scam from last fall. Dr. Gorczyca advised 
the producer to contact the OK Attorney General’s office to file a citizen complaint. 
On June 23, Dr. Gorczyca received another call from an individual wanting to know 
where they could sell fingerling tilapia in OK. Discussions with this individual revealed 
that they invested $20,000 to a company who provided tanks, feed, and breeding tilapia 
for them to propagate fingerlings which the company would then later purchase for a set 
price per the contract the individual signed.  Unfortunately, now this individual is unable 
to get in contact with the company and they report they are not the only producer to 
invest in the company that now currently have tanks full of fingerling tilapia but do not 
have a way to contact the company for them to pick them up. Dr. Gorczyca has been in 
contact with the AG’s office and is collecting information for their special investigator to 
look into the legitimacy of the company’s business practices. 
 
Biologics: 
On June 16, Dr. Gorczyca received a call from Dr. B. K. Glover concerning an 
autogenous non adjacent herd vaccine request he was having difficulty getting approved. 
Dr. Gorczyca contacted the company in question and determined they were having 
problems approving the nonadjacent herd physical addresses for where the vaccine will 
be shipped and received. These particular addresses were being rejected for not being 911 
addresses. Dr. Gorczyca clarified for the company that in rural areas of the state, 911 
addresses were not common and that highway contract and rural routes were acceptable 
addresses to use. Dr. Glover’s request was approved and his clients were able to receive 
vaccine to prevent pinkeye.  
 
Cattle Programs: 
USDA APHIS Veterinary Services has been re-writing the rules that govern animals with 
Brucellosis or Tuberculosis when in interstate commerce for several years.  Late in 2015 
the proposed rule was published and opened for public comment.  Dr. Roach and I read 
through the rule, discussed it with some of our stakeholders, and made comments prior to 
the comment due date. 
 
On May 25 and 26 we hosted an APHIS VS training in Tuberculosis and testing for the 
disease in livestock.  Both Federal and State veterinarians attended.  This training was 
aimed at new employees who had not had the opportunity to be trained to do certain 
confirmatory TB tests. 
 
Since the last report we have had 12 positive reports of Johne’s Disease positive animals 
on eight new premises.  This compares to eight positives on six new premises in the same 
period in 2015 and three in 2014.  Comparing year to date for 2016 our totals are 44 
positive on 34 new premises and in the same period in 2015 we had 53 positive on 45 
new premises.   2014 had eight positives in the same period.   Of the 10 herds that have 
multiple reports of positive animals, six have chosen to test the entire herd for culling of 
positives.  These are all beef operations.  True prevalence within the herds is not known 
but the test results show a range from 1.35% to 11.8%.  False negative test results are 



 E - 3 

common with this disease so veterinarians will have to continue to work on education and 
management. 
 
During the time period from May 7 through June 20, 1301 bulls were tested for 
Trichomoniasis, with 35 positive bulls discovered.  Dr. Woodbridge contacts the owners 
of positive bulls and their veterinarians to follow up and offer advice about control and 
eradication of the disease, and to answer questions about the disease and our regulations. 
 

 
 
Our current statistics compare to 2.1% positive bulls in 2011, 1.4% in 2012, 1.3% in 
2013, 1.4% in 2014, and 1.1% in 2015. 
 
Emergency Management: 
 

                                      
                                              Injured livestock from Wynnewood tornado 

 



 E - 4 

The evening of May 9 several tornados touched down across the state.  We worked with 
Oklahoma Medical Reserve Corps to activate OLAFR to assist with triage and evacuation 
of some livestock near Wynnewood.    
 
On June 9, Dr. Gorczyca attended an Earth, Wind, Fire planning meeting. A request for 
agency PIOs to attend the meeting was made, and Dr. Gorczyca invited Melissa Pearson 
who also attended. This year, OEM would like to have a joint information center (JIC). A 
JIC contains PIOs and liaisons from local and state agencies that work together to 
develop communication updates during an incident. Objectives for the exercise and an 
outline of the scenario were revealed. The planning team will meet again in August to 
finalize the exercise scenario. 
 
On June 15, Dr. Gorczyca attended the OKMRC Statewide Unit Leaders meeting. Dr. 
Gorczyca represented the State Animal Response Team. Updates were given as far as 
recent activity each unit has performed. Ideas for training for volunteers and grant 
funding were discussed. 
 
On June 22, Dr. Gorczyca and I attended a virtual table top exercise developed by 
FEMA. The Payne County Animal Response Team hosted the exercise in Stillwater. The 
exercise centered on companion animal and livestock sheltering following a flood. 
Afterwards, a discussion concerning the future of the State Animal Response Team was 
conducted between Dr. Hall, Dr. Gorczyca, Drs. Daniel Burba and Elisabeth Giedt from 
CVHS, and current SART leaders Drs. Scott Mason and Leslie Cole. Dr. Mason would 
like leadership of the SART to be taken over by CVHS. However, CVHS does not have 
the funding or resources at this time to assume leadership. It was decided at the end of the 
conversation to dissolve the SART and to focus on county animal response teams that 
would be able to be built up into regional resources and could be deployed statewide if 
necessary, eliminating the need for the SART.   
 
Dr. Gorczyca attended the NASAAEP (National Alliance of State Animal and 
Agriculture Emergency Programs) Summit May 17-19, in College Station, TX.  All 
travel expenses were paid by the Summit planning committee as Dr. Gorczyca was the 
state animal health official representing Oklahoma and is a voting member for 
NASAAEP. 
 
On May 20 Dr. Gorcyzca and I, as well as Secretary Reese and other ODAFF employees, 
attended the ribbon cutting for an emergency animal response truck and trailer.  The 
equipment is owned by American Humane Association, who ODAFF has a MOU with.  
The equipment will be housed at OSU OKC and will be managed by a veterinarian who 
will be employed by AHA.  We are looking forward to getting the veterinarian involved 
in our efforts to promote CARTs and other preparedness activities.  Part of the funding 
for the trailer was provided by the Kirkpatrick Foundation.  
 
 
 
 



 E - 5 

Equine Programs: 
There were no new cases for Equine Infectious Anemia, Piroplasmosis, or Contagious 
Equine Metritis.   
NAHLMS 2015-16 Equine Study has been active.  This study is to be completed during 
May 1 thru September 30, 2016.  It involves completing a questionnaire of a 
representative number of willing equine owners and then collecting biological samples 
from their animals.  The study will provide information that will be useful to horse 
owners, university and extension researchers, and publications as well as industry and 
product development.  This study will contain information to compare to previous studies 
in 1998 and 2005 while providing a benchmark for where we are today.  The study 
includes serology samples will be banked for future studies, internal parasite drug 
resistance, salmonella prevalence and drug resistance in the equine population and thus a 
risk to human health, tick samples for species mapping and disease transmission and 
individual biosecurity studies that will help educate producers in disease prevention, 
disease reduction and disease elimination.  Oklahoma has 86 potential participants of the 
approximately 950 nationwide.  ODAFF field veterinarians Dr. Woodbridge and Dr. 
Stone are participating in the study data collection along with USDA VMO’s.   
 
Farmed Cervidae Programs: 
AIS received notice from the Wisconsin state veterinarian of 11 farmed whitetail deer 
that were potentially exposed to chronic wasting disease in that state and were later 
moved to Oklahoma.  These 11 animals were sent to 4 different Oklahoma herds in 2011 
and 2013.  Some of these animals have tested negative for CWD, some are still alive, 
some sold out of state, and others released into hunting preserves.  Dr. Roach is working 
closely with the herd owners and the USDA to implement any applicable herd 
restrictions.  However, these traces are considered low risk since the herd they originated 
from has not been identified as positive, and no quarantines will be necessary.    
 
The elk herd in Logan County that previously received a letter of warning for neglecting 
to tag the adult animals has become licensed as a commercial hunt area through the 
Oklahoma Department of Wildlife.  Under ODWC’s regulations, tagging is not required.  
This was one of the options offered to the producer in the original letter of warning.  AIS 
will now drop this herd from its licensing program with no notice of violation. 
Dr. Roach coordinated a training for some newer AIS and USDA veterinary medical 
officers who had not previously worked with farmed deer.  They performed 
chronic wasting disease, tuberculosis, and brucellosis herd work for a producer who 
owned both whitetail deer and mule deer.  The new blood test the USDA has for 
tuberculosis is not approved for mule deer because it has not been validated for that 
species yet, so all the mule deer were tested by the skin test method.  However, Dr. 
Roach sent blood samples from all the mule deer to the USDA’s laboratory so they could 
perform further research and hopefully approve the blood test for this species.   
 
Feral Swine: 
A notice of violation was issued to the individual in Mayes County who was identified in 
April for illegally transporting and maintaining feral swine.  This person worked with Dr. 



 E - 6 

Roach to legally dispose of the feral swine.  Payment of the administrative penalty is still 
pending. 
 
During this period, one feral swine handling facility was possibly commingling feral 
swine with domestic slaughter swine.  Dr. Roach was made aware of the situation, called 
and resolved the issue.  AIS’s amended feral swine administrative rules that become 
effective in September prohibit the commingling of feral swine with any domestic 
livestock.   
 
Dr. Roach received a complaint of a domestic swine producer in Slick, Oklahoma who 
was allowing his swine to run at large on neighbors’ property.  Dr. Roach contacted this 
individual and educated him on the regulations.  It was explained that these animals 
would legally be considered “feral swine” in Oklahoma since the Feral Swine Control 
Act defines feral swine as any swine that is “running-at-large” and/or “free roaming”.   It 
was further explained that he could be held accountable according to the Feral Swine 
Control Act.  The producer insisted that the two older sows would be sold immediately, 
and the a few remaining slaughter pigs would be kept in a newly constructed pen.  We 
will follow up on this case in the near future. 
 
Dr. Roach assisted OSU Extension Veterinarian, Dr. Barry Whitworth, with feral swine 
information that he will be presenting regularly on feral swine regulations and diseases of 
concern. 
 
Foreign Animal Disease: 
We had one potential Foreign Animal Disease case reported during this time period.  A 
backyard poultry flock experienced a high mortality event and there was concern that it 
could possibly be Highly Pathogneic Avian Influenza. Dr. Stone visited with the flock 
owner and examining the birds.  Samples were taken and lab results were obtained.  
Mycoplasma gallisepticum was identified as the primary disease.  This is a difficult 
disease to treat.  This was an excellent opportunity to provide education for biosecurity, 
disease transmission and management.  The owner plans on depopulation and cleaning 
the facilities without spreading the disease to others producers.  
 
 
Livestock Market Audits: 
During this period, this department has been working with Sam Chandler and family 
to complete the licensing procedure to begin operation at the Fort Smith Livestock 
facility. Sam, who is the former owner of Adair County Livestock and has purchased the 
facility along with two sons-in-law, plans to have the first sale July 11th. Along with 
assisting the new market ownership, this department must work with the former market 
owners in the way of performing a final close-out audit in preparation of closing the 
custodial account. In addition to the new market activity, several livestock market 
custodial account audits were performed during this period with no violations discovered. 
                       
                                   Livestock Auction Market Activities 

Auction market licenses issued   0  
Market custodial audits completed   9  



 E - 7 

Auction market complaints investigated  0  
Fines collected (operating without a license)  0  
Livestock Markets with Legal Action  0  
Special Audits      0 

 
Outreach: 
On May 11 I met with the son of a veterinarian and the son’s friend to discuss livestock 
identification and traceability to assist the two young men in a project they were involved 
in. 
 
On May 11 we hosted our monthly Veterinary Medical Officer meeting where State and 
Federal veterinarians get together to discuss current and new programs, issues and cases. 
 
On May18 I presented information to Extension Educators about EHV1, Changes in 
Swine ID rules, and Feral Swine.  This meeting was conducted via Webinar as part of 
OSU OCES’ Coffee Shop Presentation series. 
 
Also on May 18 I gave a presentation about Canine Brucellosis to a group of 
veterinarians at the United States Public Health Services Scientific and Training 
Symposium at the Cox Convention Center. 
 
On June 17 I traveled to OSU CVHS and gave a presentation at their annual Summer 
Seminar for veterinarians and veterinary technicians.  My topic was Equine Reportable 
Diseases. 
     
The FDA Veterinary Feed Directive is a subject that most livestock producers have now 
heard of.  It will change the way most producers can access antibiotics to use in or on 
livestock feed.  We continue to get questions from veterinarians as well as producers and 
have been trying to help them understand the rules that go into effect at the end of 2016. 
 
 
Poultry Programs: 
We responded to 19 sick bird/dead bird cases in the time period represented (total of 60 
cases for 2016).  No reportable diseases were discovered in these cases. 
Dr. Herrin attended the Tri-State Poultry Health Advisory Committee (PHAC) meeting 
May 20. 
 
We have been assisting David Wheelock as he modifies a Collector App for use by field 
personnel during an Avian Influenza incident.  The app will improve the efficiency and 
accuracy of our response efforts.  It combines several features into one program on an 
IPad such as mapping capability/aerial photography/GPS locator, county 911 data (if 
available), licensed commercial poultry farms, and question and answer survey. 
 
This will enables our field staff to quickly, efficiently, and systematically go door-to-door 
as they scour an area to locate backyard poultry.  We record the information as we visit 
each residence, such as “no birds” or “poultry present”, or “not home left note”, etc.  We 



 E - 8 

record name, address and contact information for the residents that own poultry.  The 
information from all the IPads being used in the field is synchronized into one main 
database at the end of the day.  We can easily track the progress of the field activity as we 
categorize the residences as: “successful contact no poultry”, “need follow-up visit”, 
“testing scheduled”, “testing completed”, etc.  We believe that once the app is perfected 
and we are able to acquire more iPads that our field staff can use this same app in our 
other programs. 
 
Rabies in Livestock: 
There were no confirmed cases of rabies during this period.   
 
Sheep and Goat Programs: 
AIS veterinary medical officers continue to assist the USDA with flock investigations for 
scrapie traces out of Ohio.  So far no scrapie positive animals have been identified from 
these traces. 
 
On multiple occasions in the last couple months, AIS and USDA veterinarians performed 
scrapie surveillance testing at the Perry Livestock Market.  This project was developed 
and approved by the USDA’s scrapie administration to increase scrapie surveillance 
levels in Oklahoma after the state failed to receive “Consistent State Status” for the 
scrapie eradication program in 2016.  The producers who participated were paid a small 
incentive per animal by USDA. 
 
The Red River Livestock Market and Ada Livestock Market were both approved by AIS 
and the USDA to sell sheep and goats during this period.  Most of the requirements to do 
this are focused on proper identification of animals for scrapie traceability. 
 
A livestock market owner in Oklahoma was contacted by AIS and educated after it was 
determined he sold sheep and goats through the market without prior authorization.  This 
facility was only approved to sell poultry and did not officially identify the sheep and 
goats that moved through the sale on that date. 
 
Swine Programs: 
At the request of the National Pork Board, Dr. Roach attended a meeting in Des Moines, 
Iowa to participate in a discussion on Porcine Epidemic Diarrhea virus.  Although the 
incidence of this disease has dropped significantly since it was first identified in the 
United States in 2013, it continues to have a very large economic impact on the industry.  
The discussion was focused on whether or not the industry and regulators were interested 
in pursuing a disease eradication program for PEDv.  The industry wants to avoid a 
situation similar to what happened with PRRS virus in the 1980s, and take action early 
while it may still be possible to eradicate the disease.  This discussion is still ongoing.  
All travel expenses were paid by the National Pork Board.   
 
AIS has begun working with the administration of the Oklahoma Youth Expo and Tulsa 
State Fair to implement the new administrative rule that exhibition swine have an official 
RFID tag at the time of testing.  Since these two exhibitions are the culmination of the 



 E - 9 

spring and fall swine show season and have always had their own show-specific tags, a 
few small adjustments to their nomination process will need to be made. 
   
The brucellosis positive swine herd in Jefferson County that was depopulated in late 2015 
has repopulated and joined AIS’ validated/qualified herd program.  This program ensures 
quarterly surveillance for both brucellosis and pseudorabies while also adding value to 
the herd. 
 
Miscellaneous: 
Dr. Roach assisted a practicing veterinarian in Payne County who was struggling with 
carcass disposal of a tularemia positive cat.  Tularemia is a zoonotic disease and is on the 
federal select agent list.  
 
I completed two investigations that stemmed from complaints about Non Veterinarian 
Equine Dental Providers.  In both cases I contacted the individuals, discussed the 
regulations, and told them the details of the complaints.  I believe one complaint was 
unjustified and the other was caused by the provider not being familiar with our laws.  I 
closed the cases with no other action, but documented the investigations for future 
reference if necessary.  
 
We assisted County and City officials in two livestock abuse investigations.  In each case 
one of our inspectors was dispatched to examine livestock and assist the local authorities 
in making decisions on how to handle the case. 
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
Rod Hall, DVM 
 



 F-1 

Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry 
Wildlife Services Division 

July 2016 Board Report for May-June 2016 Activities 
 
 
Introduction 
 
WS responds to complaints from the public involving problems with wildlife throughout 
Oklahoma.  WS Specialists conduct operational control programs for many of the 
complaints they receive to resolve these wildlife damage problems.  During this period, 
these projects were conducted on an estimated 1.7 million acres of land under agreement.  
Additionally, WS helped 1,852 persons and entities with technical assistance which 
involved providing information to cooperators so they can resolve problems themselves.  
Cooperators reported and WS Specialists verified wildlife damage of $762,929 during 
this period. Beaver damages accounted for losses totaling $110,483. Coyotes were 
responsible for a number of damage requests, primarily to livestock, with losses totaling 
$9,648. Feral hog damages accounted for losses totaling $574,851. 
 
Providing Wildlife Services  
 
Coyote Damage Management 
 
WS was contacted by a Lincoln County land owner with a complaint about losing a calf 
to coyotes. A Wildlife Specialist responded to the call and determined the damage was 
caused by coyotes. Equipment was set on the property and work is ongoing at this time. 
So far, three coyotes have been removed from the property. 
 
On May 5th, WS responded to a request for coyote damage management. The rancher 
reported that coyotes were responsible for the predation of two calves valued at a total of 
$800. The Specialist responded to the request and documented the loss and verified an 
overwhelming amount of coyote activity. The WS Specialist used leghold traps and 
calling/shooting to reduce or eliminate damages. The rancher was instructed on several 
methods that can be employed to prevent future losses. Work is beginning at this time. 
 
An Osage County landowner contacted WS and requested help with coyotes that had 
killed a calf on his property. A WS Coordinator responded to the request and verified that 
coyotes were responsible for the loss, valued at over $400. Using calling and shooting, 
the Coordinator removed two problem coyotes, and work continues on the property. 
 
Another landowner in Osage County contacted WS on May 20th, and requested help with 
some coyotes that had killed eight kid goats on his property. The WS Coordinator 
verified that coyotes were responsible for the losses valued at $1,614. Neck snares are 
were used to capture the offending animals.  
 
 



 F-2 

On May 6th, a Texas County rancher contacted WS for assistance with coyote damage 
management.  The rancher reported that coyotes were responsible for killing a calf valued 
at $850.  The Wildlife Specialist for Texas County responded to the request and 
confirmed that coyotes were responsible for the loss.  The Specialist utilized 
calling/shooting to remove five coyotes from the immediate area, with no further losses 
reported. 
 
A Garfield County landowner requested assistance with coyote depredation on turkeys.  
The Wildlife Specialist responded, and verified that coyotes were responsible for the 
losses.  The Specialist recommended the resource owner to implement the methods of 
exclusion and penning to help reduce further losses.  The Specialist set snares to remove 
two coyotes.  No further losses have occurred. 
 
A Stephens County rancher reported loss of a calf to coyotes.  The WS Specialist 
recommend to the rancher to use the methods of guarding animals, and exclusion fencing 
to help reduce livestock future losses to coyotes.  Using snares, the Specialist captured 
seven coyotes on the property.  At this time no further losses have occurred, and the 
Specialist continues to monitor coyote activity in the area.   
 
Feral Hog Damage Management 
 
A representative of the Sequoyah National Wildlife Refuge contacted WS to request 
assistance with a feral pig problem. WS verified that pigs had caused an estimated $2,000 
in damage to farm fields on the refuge, and were a threat to fields on private property 
surrounding the refuge, along with wetlands. Thermal detection/shooting and corral traps 
were used to remove more than 50 pigs from the refuge before crops were planted, and 
work is ongoing at this time. The refuge provided cooperative funds to offset the cost of 
control efforts. 
 
WS was contacted by a Muskogee County farmer  regarding feral pig damage to a corn 
field. A WS Troubleshooter verified that pigs had indeed begun rooting out the corn. 
Thermal detection/shooting was used to remove three pigs from the field within the next 
24 hrs. Damage was kept to a minimum, and no further pig activity has been reported or 
observed at this time. 
 
On May 12th, an Osage County Nature Preserve contacted WS and requested help with 
feral swine that were rooting up the lawn at the Preserve headquarters. A WS Coordinator 
responded to the request and verified that feral swine were responsible for the damage 
valued at $800.  Due to the abundant wildlife and buffalo in the area, thermal night 
shooting was used to removed 11 problem swine to date and monitoring for pigs 
continues.  
 
On May 12th, a Custer County soybean producer requested assistance with feral hogs 
damaging newly planted soybean fields.  The Specialist for Custer County responded to 
the request and verified feral hogs were responsible for $3,000 in damage to the newly 



 F-3 

planted soybean field.  The Specialist utilized corral traps and thermal imaging to remove 
13 feral hogs from the area.  Work is ongoing at this time to reduce further damage to the 
resource. 
 
On May 15th, a Beckham County peanut grower requested assistance with feral hogs.  
The WS Specialist assigned to the area quickly responded that day and verified that feral 
hogs had rooted up seed peanuts just planted the previous day. The loss was estimated at 
$2,000.  That night the Specialist used thermal imaging to remove 16 feral hogs from the 
newly planted fields.  All efforts resulted in a total of 26 feral hogs removed, with 
monitoring to continue to insure no more damage occurs from feral hogs. 
 
On May 12th, a Roger Mills landowner reported feral hogs had damage hay bales valued 
at $800.  The WS Specialist responded to the request and successfully used thermal 
imaging to remove 13 hogs from the property.  Feral hog activity around the hay bales 
has slowed at this time.  The Specialist is closely monitoring the area to determine if 
additional control measures are needed. 
 
Beaver Damage Management 
 
An Osage County landowner contacted WS and requested help with beavers that were 
flooding on a road on his property. A WS Coordinator responded to the requested and 
verified that beaver were responsible the flooding. Using conibear traps, the Coordinator 
captured three problem beaver and work continues. 
 
WS was contacted by a Okmulgee County land owner reported that beaver were 
damming the overflow on this pond, and burrowing several holes into his pond dam.  WS 
responded to the request and verified that beaver were responsible for the damage.  
Damages to the dam were estimated at $800.  The Specialist set conibear traps to remove 
ten problem beaver.   Control efforts are ongoing at this time. 
 
An Adair County rancher contacted WS and requested help with beavers in a pond on his 
property. A Wildlife Specialist responded to the request, and verified that beavers were 
burrowing into the dam and damaged the structure. Conibear traps were set to remove 
four problem beavers.  Work continues at this time. 
 
On May 9th, WS received a request from a Sequoyah County Commissioner regarding 
beaver damage. The Commissioner reported that beavers had dammed up a culvert and 
roadside ditch, threatening to flood the roadway. Conibear traps were used to quickly 
remove a large adult beaver from the ditch, and monitoring continues to ensure that no 
additional beavers are present.  
 
 
 
 
 



 F-4 

On May 2nd, a Woodward County landowner requested assistance with beavers that were 
flooding pasture on his property.  The landowner reported that beavers were responsible 
for the flooding of two acres valued at $1000 dollars.  The Wildlife Specialist assigned to 
Woodward County verified the damage and used neck snares and shooting to remove 
seven beavers from the area. 
 
On May 4th, a Washita County Commissioner contacted WS for assistance with beavers 
damaging a county road.  The commissioner reported that beaver had dammed up the 
culvert on a county road causing flooding, resulting in $1000 damage to the road.  The 
Specialist assigned to Washita County successfully placed conibears to capture four 
beaver.  Control efforts are complete at this time, with no further losses reported. 
 
On May 12th, a Stephens County landowner contacted WS for assistance with beaver 
flooding his pasture.  The WS Specialist for Stephens County responded and verified 
beaver were responsible for flooding six acres of pasture valued at $7,998.  The Specialist 
successfully utilized conibear traps and snares to remove six beaver.  Control efforts are 
complete at this time 
 
WS Assistance at Airports and Air Force Bases 
 
Vance Air Force Base 
 
Usually in the spring and early summer cattle egrets usually migrate into the area near 
Vance AFB.  In years past, the egrets will follow the airfield mowers searching for 
insects, and cause a bird strike hazard issue.  When farmers in the area start to cut their 
wheat, the cattle egrets will follow the combines looking for insects while giving the 
airfield a rest during harvest.  That was not the case for this year.  The cattle egrets were 
content to stay with the airfield mowers.  This is more of an issue at Kegelman airfield 
than at Vance.   
 
The ability to do a prescribed airfield burn at Vance was hindered this last spring due to 
an internal environmental misclassification issue.  This issue has since been resolved and 
Vance anticipates the ability to burn next spring.  In the spring of 2015, a prescribed burn 
was performed in a meadowlark critical area of the Vance airfield.  Vance recorded no 
bird strikes for an entire month following the burn.   
 
The City of Enid, and Vance AFB, is in need of an additionalwater source in the 
foreseeable future.  The city is planning to pipe water in from a lake 60+ miles away.  
This plan includes some terminal water storage near the city of Enid.  The city was very 
helpful and proactive in seeking Vance's input for the location of the terminal water 
storage.  WS reached out to the Air Force Safety Center and the USDA's National 
Wildlife Research Center before making any wildlife recommendations.  The Air Force 
Safety Center and Vance wing safety provided the proper distances relative to Vance 
patterns.  City of Enid engineers took the information provided to advise the city on water 
bodies and their attractiveness to wildlife.  This includes different water storage shapes, 



 F-5 

bank angles, and depths that affect the attractiveness to wildlife.  
 

Information and Communication  
 
On May 5th, and 6th, Two of NE District Employees conducted an exhibit in Sooner Park 
in Bartlesville as a part of USDA Natural Resources days.  The duo were able to educate 
566 Washington county 4th grade students 35 teachers and 33 parents in WS services role 
in protecting people, wildlife and agriculture. We also introduced them to our friend 
"Justin Beaver" (a piece of taxidermy) and told them interesting beaver facts and the role 
beavers play in nature and our role in helping control damage.  The Washington Co. 
Conservation Department was very thankful for the informative message the kid’s 
received. 
 
On May 17th, WS held an exhibit for the Ottawa County Conservation Department. The 
exhibit instructed over 200 4th grade students on the methods used daily by Wildlife 
Services. The students were also instructed on how to correctly identify wildlife damage. 
The exhibit was a huge success and Wildlife Services has been invited back again for the 
2017 school year. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Kevin Grant 
Division Director 
Wildlife Services Division 
 



  G-1 
 

June 2016 Activity Report 
for  

July 2016 Board Meeting 
 

Agricultural Statistics Division 
 
General:  The last week of May, and first few days of June experienced heavy rain over most 
of the state except for the Panhandle area. According to the Mesonet, a slow moving storm 
system dropped more rain along the Red River than is normal for that time of the year.  No areas 
of the state were reported in any category of drought according to the U.S. Drought Monitor. 
Less than 3 percent was classified as abnormally dry in far western Oklahoma. Temperatures 
ranged from 44 degrees at Hooker on Monday, May 30th to 92 degrees at Hollis on Saturday, 
June 4th. Precipitation ranged from 0.51 of an inch in the Panhandle district to 3.32 inches in the 
South Central district. Soil temperature averages ranged from 67 degrees at Boise City on 
Wednesday, June 1st to 83 degrees at Kingfisher on Monday, May 30, 2016. Statewide 
temperatures averaged in the low 70’s across the state. Topsoil and subsoil moisture conditions 
were rated mostly adequate to short. 
 
By the second full week of June, most Oklahomans received a break from the heavy rains from 
previous weeks. A ridge of high pressure sat over the state inhibiting clouds, precipitation, and 
added to the heat.  No areas of the state were reported in any category of drought according to 
the U.S. Drought Monitor.  Less than 3 percent of the state was classified as abnormally dry, 
primarily in western Oklahoma.  Temperatures ranged from 50 degrees at El Reno on Monday, 
June 6th to 97 degrees at Hooker on Wednesday, June 8th.  Precipitation ranged from zero in the 
North Central district to 1.60 inches in the South Central district.  Soil temperature averages 
ranged from 71 degrees at Kenton on Tuesday, June 7th to 89 degrees at Eufaula on Saturday, 
June 11th, 2016.  Statewide temperatures averaged in the high 70’s across the state.  Topsoil and 
subsoil moisture conditions were rated mostly adequate to short. 
 
During the third week of June, Oklahoma saw temperatures reach over 100 degrees for the first 
time this year. According to the Mesonet, the real contributor to the heat was the humidity, 
which pushed the heat index into the 110-115 range for most of the state.  For the fourth week in 
a row, no areas of the state were reported in any category of drought according to the U.S. 
Drought Monitor and zero percent was classified as abnormally dry.  Temperatures ranged from 
48 degrees at Kenton on Friday, June 17th to 104 degrees at Alva on Friday, June 17th. 
Precipitation ranged from 0.08 of an inch in the Northeast district to 2.21 inches in the Southwest 
district.  Soil temperature averages ranged from 74 degrees at Boise City on Tuesday, June 14th 
to 93 degrees at Perkins on Friday, June 17th, 2016.  Statewide temperatures averaged in the low 
80’s across the state.  Topsoil and subsoil moisture conditions were rated mostly adequate to 
short. 
 
The rainfall average for Oklahoma during the fourth week was less than half an inch and no 
district reported more than one inch.  No areas of the state were reported in any category of 
drought, according to the U.S. Drought Monitor, but 17 percent was classified as abnormally dry, 
up 17 percent from the previous week.  Temperatures ranged from 61 degrees at Boise City on 
Tuesday, June 21st to 103 degrees at Kingfisher on Thursday, June 23rd.   Precipitation ranged 
from none in the Southeast district to 0.78 of an inch in the Panhandle district.   Soil temperature 



  G-2 
 

averages ranged from 75 degrees at Kenton on Saturday, June 25th to 95 degrees at Hugo on 
Sunday, June 26th, 2016.  Statewide temperatures averaged in the low 80’s across the state. 
Topsoil and subsoil moisture conditions closed out the month at mostly adequate to short. 
 
Surveys:  Surveys conducted between June and July administered by the Oklahoma call center 
are listed in the table below: 
 
Survey Enumerated Survey Dates 
June Ag Yield Phone May 28 - Jun 4 
June Crop and Stocks Phone May 26 - Jun 13 
Cherry Forecast Phone May 27 - Jun 3 
Cash Rents Phone Apr 17 - Jun 27 
NFI Slaughter Phone Jun 12 - Jun 14 
June Hay & Grain Prices Phone Jun 15 - Jun 17 
Local Food Marketing Practices Phone Jun 8 - Jul 27 
Agricultural Resource Management Phone Jun 20 - Jul 15 
July Ag Yield Phone Jun 28 - Jul 6 
Milk Production Phone Jul 5 - Jul 12 
NFI Slaughter Phone Jul 8 - Jul 12 
July Hay & Grain Prices Phone Jul 15 - Jul 19 
August Ag Yield Phone Jul 30 - Aug 5 

 
Statistics:  The June Crop Production Report released on June 10, 2016 estimated the 
Oklahoma wheat production at 116 million bushels, up 17 percent from last year, and up 9.9 
million bushels from the May forecast.  Yield per acre was expected to average 35.0 bushels, up 
9.0 bushels from the previous year.  Acres expected for grain harvest, at 3.30 million, are down 
13 percent from 2015.  The July Crop Production Report will be released on July 12, 2016. 
 
The June 1, 2016 Oklahoma hog and pig inventory, at 2.15 million head, was 4 percent lower 
than June 2015.  The number of breeding hogs totaled 470 thousand head, up 30 thousand from 
last year.  The June 1 market hog inventory was down 6 percent from a year ago at 1.68 million 
head, 78 percent of the total hog and pig inventory. 
 
The March 2016-May 2016 Oklahoma pig crop totaled 2.01 million head, slightly below last 
year.  Pigs per litter averaged 10.3, down slightly from the previous year.  Sows farrowed during 
March 2016 through May 2016 totaled 195 thousand head, unchanged from last year. 
 
The June Acreage Report issued on June 30, 2016 estimated Oklahoma winter wheat planted, at 
5.00 million acres, down 6 percent from a year ago.  Harvested acreage, at 3.30 million, was 
down 13 percent from last year's crop.  Upland cotton, at 300 thousand planted acres, was up 40 
percent from last year.  Corn growers intended to plant 380 thousand acres, up 23 percent from 
last year while harvested acreage, at 345 thousand acres, was also up 23 percent from last year.  
Sorghum producers intended to plant 420 thousand acres, down 5 percent from a year ago, and 
expected to harvest 380 thousand acres, down 7 percent from 2015.  Other crop acreage 
estimates included in the report:  Rye acreage was unchanged from last year at 240 thousand 



  G-3 
 

acres.  Soybean acreage, at 450 thousand acres, was up 14 percent from last year. Canola 
acreage estimated at 90 thousand, was down 36 percent from 2015.  Planted acreage for peanuts, 
at 13 thousand, was up 30 percent from the previous year.  Oats, at 70 thousand acres, was up 75 
percent from last year. 
 
Oklahoma stocks of wheat in all positions on June 1 totaled 71.6 million bushels, up 78 percent 
from the 2015 level of 40.2 million bushels. Off-farm wheat stocks, at 70.2 million bushels were 
78 percent higher than June 1, 2015. 
 
Information Requests:  Phone calls, personal visits to our office, and requests via e-mail for 
information since last report totaled 18.  In addition, our internet home page was hit 2,471 times 
in May 2016, for a total of 15,825 hits for the year. 
 
Released in June   Relating Dates:  Release Dates: 
Crop Production   June 1, 2016   June 10, 2016 
Cattle on Feed    June 1, 2016   June 24, 2016 
Quarterly Hogs & Pigs  June 1, 2016   June 24, 2016 
Agricultural Prices   June 15, 2016   June 29, 2016 
Acreage    June 1, 2016   June 30, 2016 
Grain Stocks    June 1, 2016   June 30, 2016 
 
Reports for July:   Relating Dates:  Release Dates: 
Crop Production   July 1, 2015   July 12, 2015 
Cattle     July 1, 2015   Suspended for 2016 
Cattle on Feed    July 1, 2015   July 22, 2015 
Agricultural Prices   July 15, 2015   July 30, 2015 
 
Meetings and Events:  Date:    Location: 
TX Independent Cattle Raisers  
Annual Convention   June 22-24, 2016  Kerrville, TX 
 
 
 
          Respectfully Submitted,  
             
 
         Wilbert C. Hundl, Jr. 



H-1 
 
 

MARKET DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
July 12, 2016  

Report to the State Board of Agriculture (May 6 – June 24) 
 

AGRITOURISM 
 
Staff attended the Governor’s Conference on Tourism at Oklahoma City University. The evening 
event is the Redbud Awards held at the Oklahoma History Center and hosted by Lt Governor Todd 
Lamb and Jennifer Reynolds of Discover Oklahoma. This year P-Bar Farms won the 2016 
Agritourism Redbud Award. Owner Loren Liebscher is pictured below.  
 

             
 
Staff met with several potential Home Grown by Heroes candidates, as well as conducted a few 
press interviews for the program.  
 
Staff attended the Lt. Governor’s Tourism Summit in Elk City- There was a class on 7 habits of 
Highly Effective People at the Summit also.  
 
Staff met with a few key staff members of OSU to see how we could partner and utilized these 
resources. We met with Stacy Thomas, a new extension agent that comes to OSU with extensive 
background in Agritourism and rural Development in both North Carolina and Tennessee. Other 
attendees were Dave Shideler, Max Melstrom and ODAFF staff Jamey Allen, Julie Sears, and Kerry 
Barrick.  
 
Staff traveled to OSU to meet with the applicants of the Viticulture and Enology Grant. Staff is 
working with OSU staff to conduct a needs assessment for the industry to assist the selection 
committee for this grant. We also received a list from the Frontier Country Wine Group on ideas for 
future grants. In attendance: Becky Carroll, OSU, William McGlynn, OSU, Eric Rebeck, OSU and 
Stacy Thomas, OSU. 



 
 

Staff met
sheet for 
after hear
 
Staff set u
old mall t
wine map
 
Staff trav
show feat
however 
 
Staff rede
has been 
 
We finish
There are
new wine
program 
weeks.  
 

 
Staff join
follow up
in making
network t
 

t with Steve R
the Agritour

ring this seve

up and partic
that has been
ps, brochures

veled to Dalla
tured many v
Friday and S

esigned the p
very well rec

hed many rou
e 5 new wine
eries in McAl
but now ope

ned the board
p letter to the
g their group
together to f

Ruby, an exte
rism liability 
eral times at E

cipated at a r
n converted t
s and a lot of

as/Fort Wort
vendors and 
Sunday were 

popular Agrit
ceived and w

unds of proo
ries added to
lister and 1 in
erating enoug

d meeting of 
eir members 
p facebook pa
forward the in

ension agent 
law. This has
Extention m

oad show wi
to an office c
f Jelly Trail m

th with Tour
popular spea
both very bu

tourist to ma
we hope to co

ofing and cha
o map and 1 
n Muskogee 
gh to be adde

the Oklahom
and a recruit
age public. T
ndustry. 

H-2 

at OSU that
s been a hot 
eetings.  

ith Tourism a
complex. We
materials! 

rism is set up
akers. Saturd
usy and succe

tch our webs
ontinue to bu

anges and fin
new trail! Tw
have been ad
ed to the map

ma Agritouris
tment letter t

They are tryin

t would like t
topic nation

at EastGate 
e had good tr

p at the DFW
day was a little
essful days. 

site and othe
uild on its suc

nally have a b
wo new wine
dded and som
p. This will b

sm Associati
to those who
ng to do outr

to start a fact
ally and he re

Complex in 
raffic and han

W Women’s E
e slower than

er materials. T
ccess. 

brand new wi
eries in Broke
me that have
be available i

on. Staff assi
o have not jo
reach to all pr

t sheet and F
eached out to

Tulsa. This i
nded out map

Expo. This 3
n expected 

This newslett

ine trail map!
en Bow and 2
e been with th
n approx. tw

 

isted them w
ined. We ass
roducers and

FAQ 
o us 

is an 
ps, 

 day 

ter 

! 
2 
he 

wo 

with a 
sisted 
d 



H-3 
 
 

Staff completed a Specialty Crop Block Grant Application for next year to continue the work that 
has been done on the Jelly Making Trails. This program is still going strong and we are still getting 
valuable feedback from our producers on this program.  
 
The materials are FANTSTIC!! We open for picking for the first time in a few weeks . . . The blueberries are 
ripening as we speak (Er, type). The signage, cards, pamphlets, and stickers are perfect for promotion and to endear 
customers to our farm! THANK YOU! When the box arrived and I began to pull out more and more, I thought 
that it was Christmas! The quality of the materials and the thought put into the playful concept are both different and 
spot on! Rachelle Batesole, Owner Cal2Homa Christmas Tree and Mum Farm, LLC. 
 
Staff traveled to the panhandle to collect some photography of the spring round up at the Hoot Owl 
Ranch and also to visit the other ranches and country stays we have in our program. We were able to 
meet all of the owners and get some amazing photography to promote our Western Experience 
category.  
 

 
 
Staff assisted with the Ag in the Classroom 3 day bus tour.  Staff set up booth and brochures at the 
Pinto Horse World Show, this was an free opportunity that was given to us though Meriruth’ s 
connections in the equine industry. 
 
Site Visits 
Rejoice Farm, Vojai's Winery, Girls Gone Wine, Fish Tales Winery, Forest Heritge Center, Hoot 
Owl Ranch, Mesa Valley Guest Ranch, Hitching Post B&B, Black Mesa B&B, Valley View Pecan, 
Sorghum Mill Christmas Tree and Blackberry Farm, Winddrift Orchards (East & West), Spencer’s 
Orchard, C&H Vineyard, Redbud Ridge Winery, Owasso Tree & Berry Farm, The Berry Barn, Rock 
Creek Berry Farm, Canyon Berry Farm, Thunderbird Berries, Edicott Farms, Meadow Blackberry 
Farm 
 
New Site Visits 
N40 Berries- Owned by Darla Black and Richard Eberle, both research scientists at the OSU school 
of veterinary medicine. This farm has 4 different varieties of thornless blackberries that differ in 
taste, size, and time of ripening. Located just minutes from Stillwater and the beautiful OSU campus. 
Picking buckets provided, and both pre-picked & frozen berries are available on request. 
 
Robbers Cave Stables-Family-owned-and-operated dude ranch that offers services for new and 
experienced riders in Oklahoma and the surrounding areas. They want to give people an authentic 



H-4 
 
 

cowboy experience, from sleeping under the stars to riding through our dauntless trails. Near 
Wilburton, just inside Robbers Cave Park.  
 
Seminole Nation Winery- Seminole Nation Vineyard and Winery is a Native American owned 
winery in Seminole, Oklahoma. They have purchased the Grisso Mansion and the tasting room will 
be located in the mansion. They are encouraging tribal members to grow grapes and trying to get 
them involved with the winery as well. Wine tastings and tours are available at the historic Grisso 
Mansion in Seminole M-F 8am-5pm. 
 
Berry Creek Farm- This organic grower has 3 rows of blackberries and I met with him to discuss u-
pick and if he wants to get into Agritourism. He is still developing and deciding on which way to 
focus and will not be in the program.  
 
Social Media Presence  
 
Facebook Twitter   Instagram (new!) Pinterest 
5,609 fans 2,733 followers 149 followers  191 followers 
 
This is a look at our website visit compared to the same time last year. This is due to jelly trail social 
media as well as linking and search credibility that has grown since our last redesign.  
 
Sessions   Users    Pageviews 
+86.21%  +72.35%     +198.66% 
6,577 vs 3,532  5,305 vs 3,078  19,789 vs 6,626 
 
 
AG IN THE CLASSROOM  
 
NEW AITC STATE COORDINATOR  
Ag in the Classroom welcomes Melody Aufill to the team. Melody received a Bachelor’s of Science 
in Elementary Education (1996) and a Masters in Educational Leadership (2009) from Southwestern 
Oklahoma State University. Melody has spent the last twenty years as an elementary classroom 
teacher and instructional coach and consultant. In 2008 she gained National Board Certified Teacher 
status as a Middle Child Generalist and is also a certified local LETRS (Language Essentials for 
Teachers of Reading and Spelling) trainer. Melody resides in Yale, Oklahoma and has two adult 
sons, Matthew and Gordon. 
 
SUMMER AITC TOURS 
 
Specialty Crops Galore Hydro Area- 23 teachers joined AITC staff on a one day trip to learn 
about specialty crops in western Oklahoma. The trip began in Hydro with a demonstration about 
honey from Tim McCoy of Second Wind Farm. Teachers learned how important pollinators are to 
specialty crops and were able to taste test honey. Then the tour traveled north of Hydro to Triple S 
Farm, where participants met the Slagell family. Brothers Virgil and Dennis welcomed teachers and 
then Kyle Slagell and Blair Switzer, their manager, shared information about food safety and how 
they plant, harvest and store sweet potatoes, watermelon, spinach and other greens, pumpkins, and 
broccoli. One interesting fact that teachers learned is that to get seedless watermelons you have to 



 
 

cross poll
Smith talk

at Poteau
when he 
Greenlea
links bein
Creek Be
fed the gr
communi
participat
 
Day 2: T
learned ab
Keota; to
learned m
participan
for the m
 
Day 3: T
AgriTech
demonstr
about GP
sale at the
money th
were exci
 
AITC is f
in the imp
Oklahom
want to e
experienc
Forestry, 

linate with se
ked about hi

u. Many comm
talked to the
f Nursery wh

ng made and 
rry Farm wh
roup and the
ity garden th
te in the activ

The educators
bout beef cat

oured Spiro M
more about sp
nts saw cows

majority of the

The learning a
h, Inc at Web
ration; an Ok
PS systems in
e Holdenville

he next week 
ited to receiv

fortunate to h
portance of e

ma know that 
ensure that th
ces. This tour
Oklahoma B

eeded waterm
s pepper gro

i

 

ments were m
e teachers abo
here they lear
also taste tes

here they pick
en took every
hey have on s
vities and ask

s toured Hal’
ttle breeding

Mounds Mus
pecialty crop
s being vaccin
e teachers! 

adventure co
bbers Falls wh
klahoma Mes
n agriculture, 
e Sale Barn. T
because they

ve an Oklaho

have great sp
educating tea
these educat

he educators 
r was sponso
Beef Council

melon. Then
owing operati
Farm sweet p
and Water W
included spe
blackberries.
Farms near A
this stop was
the Horn Ca
process of gr
specialty cro
to receive an
the tour! 

On the Roa
Participants
Day 1:The fi
made during
out the issue
rned about g
st them; Spri
ked fresh blu
yone on a mu
ite! This was

ked great que

’s Beef Jerky
g and sod pro
eum at Spiro
s at Wild Th
nated and art

ntinued with
here they lea
sonet station
soybeans, an

Tom Holcom
y were so eag

oma Specialty

ponsors who
achers about
tors reach th
are prepared

ored by the O
, a USDA Sp

H-5 

the tour trav
ion. Next, th
potato storag

Winery near A
ecialty crops s
. After lunch
Apache. Teac
s eye opening
anna Farm in
rowing and h
p. The teach

n Oklahoma S

ad With AIT
went “On th

first stop on t
the day abou
s facing the c

grafting; Mt. V
ng Valley Da

ueberries. For
ule-drawn wa
s an action-pa
estions at the

at Poteau an
oduction at D
o Mounds wh
hings Farm at
tificially insem

h stops at Cal
rned about a
; Sloan Farm
nd corn; and
mb, the owne
ger to bid! Th
y Cropopoly

 support the
agriculture. T
ousands of y

d with factual
Oklahoma De
pecialty Crop

veled south t
he teachers w
ge facility be
Anadarko for
such as green

h the tour con
chers were n
g for them. T

n Carnegie wh
harvesting ca
hers had a fab
Specialty Cro

TC in Easter
he Road” wit
the tour was
ut how respe
cattle industr
View Meats w
airy during m
r supper Gre
agon ride. Th
acked day, an

e stops. 

nd almost bo
Don Sebo’s C
hile learning
t Pocola. Wh
minated. Thi

l2Homa Chr
aerial sprayin

ms at Webber
 the tour con
er, asked the
he teachers e
game at the 

Ag in the Cl
The agricultu
young studen
l information
epartment of

p Block Gran

o SS Farms w
were able to se

fore heading
r a delicious l
n beans, gree
ntinued to La

not familiar w
The last stop
here teachers
anna lilies, wh
bulous day an
opopoly gam

rn Oklahom
th AITC.  
the Dismuk

ectful and int
ry. Participan
where they g

milking hours
een Country 
he educators 
nd the teache

ought the who
Cattle Ranch 
about state h

hile at Don Se
is was a first 

ristmas Tree 
ng and saw a 
rs Falls where
ncluded with
teachers to r

enjoyed the t
end of the to

lassroom pro
ure commod
nts on a daily
n, as well as, 
f Agriculture
nt, Oklahoma

where Dean
ee the Triple

g to the Woo
lunch that 
ens, and 
avender Valle

with lavender
 of the day w
s learned the
hich are also
nd were excit

me at the end

ma- 51 

es' Cattle Ran
telligent Jim w
nts also toure
got to see hot
s; and Maple
Cowboy Chu
also toured t

ers were eage

ole inventory
and Sod Far

history; and 
ebo’s farm, t
time experie

Farm in Gor
flyover 
e they learned

h a mock cattl
return with r
three day tou
our! 

ogram and be
dity groups in
y basis and th
personal 

e Food and 
a AgCredit, 

e S 
ds 

ey 
r so 
was 
 
a 

ted 
of 

nch 
was 
ed 
t 

urch 
the 
er to 

y; 
rm at 

the 
ence 

re; 

d 
le 

real 
ur and 

elieve 
n 
hey 



 
 

Oklahom
DairyMA
 
NATION
 
The Okla
Phoenix, 
Outstand
represent
received t
Amber B
Amber B
registratio
creating l
presented
conferenc
represent
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
AITC PR

• 10 teach
AITC w

• 32 PK-
school. 
They al
provide

• 15 pres
showed
Red Di

• 25 pres
worksh

• 41 teach
attend t

ma Soybean B
AX, and South

NAL AITC 

ahoma AITC
Arizona. Th

ding Oklahom
ted at the con
the National 
ales, the Okl
ales were bo
on; Oklahom
essons to go

d four Mini W
ce, Audrey H
ting Oklahom

L

ROFESSIO

hers attendin
workshop. Le

2nd grade te
Lessons cov

lso created co
ed breakfast: 

ervice teache
d them how t
rt Groundbr

ervice teache
hop. Staff had

hers at the T
the AITC wo

Board, Oklah
hwest Dairy.

CONFERE

C State Coord
hanks to the f
ma teachers w
nference: Lis
Excellence i

lahoma AITC
th recognize

ma AITC Cur
 with the mo

Workshop se
Harmon atten
ma on the Na

Lisa Storm, Nati

NAL DEVE

ng the Oklah
essons used w

achers in Te
vered include
ow glyphs to
Maple Bacon

ers at Rogers
to create and
reakers.  

ers in the rea
d them create

Teachers of Su
orkshop. AIT

oma Farm B
.  

ENCE IN P

dinators recen
financial supp
were also able
a Storm, 3rd
in Teaching A
C 2016 TOY
ed for receivin
rriculum Writ
ovie “Farmlan
ssions titled

nded the Nat
ational AITC

ional Excellenc

ELOPMEN

oma Science
were the “Ch

cumseh parti
ed “An Apple
 go with the
n Donuts.  

s State in Clar
d use Kahoot

ading method
e Kahoots fo

uccessful Stu
TC Coordina

H-6 

Bureau Wome

PHOENIX,

ntly attended
port of Okla
e to attend th

d grade teache
Agriculture A

Y, was recogn
ng National A
ter, Pat Thom
nd”; and Ok
“Fruits, Nut

tional AITC S
C Curriculum

ce in Teaching A

NT WORKSH

 and Techno
hemistry of B

icipated in a
e a Day” and
lesson “Beau

remore partic
ts and then h

ds class at NS
or the AITC R

udents (TOSS
ator shared A

en's Leadersh

 ARIZONA

d the Nationa
ahoma AgCre
he conferenc
er at Heritag
Award and p
nized as a stat
AITC Schola
mpson, was r

klahoma AIT
ts, and Veggi
State Contac

m Committee.

Agriculture Aw

HOPS 

ology Associa
Butter” and “

professional
d teachers ma
utiful Bovine

cipated in an
had them crea

SU Broken A
Red Dirt Gr

S) conferenc
Aurasma and

hip Team, M

A 

al AITC Con
edit and CoB
ce. Oklahom
ge Elementary
resented a sp
te winner; D
arships to co
recognized o

TC State Coor
ies, Oh My!” 
ct Meetings a
.  

ward Winner 

ation Confer
“Ag Aviation

l developmen
ade Applesau
e.” The OK P

n AITC work
ate Kahoots 

Arrow enjoye
roundbreaker

ce in Tahlequ
Kahoot and 

Midwest Dairy

nference in 
Bank, this yea
a was well 
y in Kingfish
peech on stag

Debra Deskin
over their 
on stage for 
rdinators 
While at the

and is now 

rence attende
n.” 

nt day at thei
uce Oobleck
Pork Counci

kshop. AITC
to go with A

ed and AITC
rs.  

uah chose to
taught teach

y, 

ar 5 

her, 
ge; 

n and 

e 

ed an 

ir 
. 
il 

C Staff 
AITC 

C 

hers 



H-7 
 
 

to make and use both using lessons that tied to specialty crops and STEM. Staff heard over and 
over that the session was the best they had attended.  

• 125 educators from across the nation selected the Oklahoma AITC “Fruits, Nuts and Veggies, Oh 
My” workshop at the National AITC Conference in Arizona. Oklahoma State Coordinators 
shared how to implement STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering, and Math) into their lessons 
using fruits, nuts, and vegetables.  

 
AITC STUDENT EVENTS  

• 1275 children and adults attended the annual Chuckwagon Festival at the National Cowboy 
Heritage Museum – many made butter and even more had a chance to milk Betsy.  

• 80 PreK and Kindergarten students at St. Andrews school in OKC got to milk Betsy and learned 
about dairy cows and where milk comes from. 20 Kindergarten students made butter and another 
20 Kindergartners made Ice Cream in a bag. 

• 569 5th grade students at Washington County Ag Safety Day learned about agriculture, food 
safety, and AITC State Coordinator taught the lesson “How Germs Spread” using glitter to 
demonstrate how quickly germs can spread.  

• 475 3rd-5th grade Tulsa students listened as AITC Coordinator taught about milk and farm 
animals at the Tulsa Farm to Market day. The students also milked "Bessie"- Tulsa's cow. 

• 19 High School Seniors at the annual Farm Bureau Oklahoma Youth Leadership Academy learned 
how they can use AITC to have a school ag day. This year, Farm Bureau will award a scholarship 
to one of these students if they use AITC and set up an Ag Day at their school! 

 
AITC RESOURCES MAILED 

• 28 ABC’S of Oklahoma and 28 Specialty Crop Ag Magazines were mailed to a preschool in 
Broken Arrow.  

 
WEBSITE, SOCIAL MEDIA, AND LESSONS 

• The AITC website had 14,908 visits and 10,969 unique page view visits. 

• AITC lessons were downloaded 1,121 times. 

• AITC Smartboard lessons were downloaded from the website 35 times. 

• AITC Powerpoint lessons were downloaded 11 times. 

• The AITC Facebook page now has 3,202 followers. 
 
 
MADE IN OKLAHOMA 
 
Market Development staff worked with Boiling Point Media in order to have product photos taken 
of the MIO Coalition Emerging companies participating in the AWG Slotting Project. Photos were 
taken of individual products as well as the owners/salespeople associated with the products. These 
photos will be used in Affiliated Wholesale Grocers (AWG) retail advertisements and promotions in 
the upcoming months. Plans are being made to take photos of the remaining MIO Coalition 
Emerging companies not participating in the AWG project. 

 



H-8 
 
 

The MIO Emerging Committee held their monthly meeting in May. The guest speaker for May was 
Jim Brooks with the Food and Agricultural Products Center. Jim discussed the various options for 
choosing a food broker and the process involved.  
 

 
 
New Members to the Made in Oklahoma Program 
 
Elevated Candles – Oklahoma City 
Elevated Candles was founded with the principles of sustainability and protecting the environment. 
That's why they use repurposed bottles, all natural soy wax, eco-friendly wicks, and recycled 
packaging materials. They aim to create a trend of social responsibility in which there exists a 
balance between economy and ecosystem. For more information, please visit their website, 
https://elevatedcandles.com/ 
 

 
 



H-9 
 
 

Made in Oklahoma Program Web Statistics 
May 9 – June 24 
Page Views: 99 
Users: 99 (New and Returning)  
% New Sessions: 100% 
 
Made in Oklahoma Program Facebook Statistics 
May 9, 2016 – 2,071 Likes 
June 27, 2016 – 2,083 Likes 
 
 

MADE IN OKLAHOMA COALITI ON 
 
Staff attended a meeting with Crest personnel on May 19. This was a chance to chat about what 
went well, and what could be improved as pertains to the April promotion in the Oklahoma City 
Crest stores. As a result of the meeting, Crest personnel were secured to be the featured speaker at 
the upcoming July Emerging Committee Meeting scheduled for the 13th.  
 
Staff continues to be involved in the coordination of the AWG warehouse +MIO product slotting 
project. A couple of meetings with AWG personnel were attended to finalize logistics regards 
product delivery to the AWG warehouse from an offsite consolidation point, and scheduling teams 
of MIO members to service the independent retailers once products have been delivered to the 
warehouse. Delivery to the warehouse is scheduled tentatively for mid-July. 
 
Staff coordinated the June 10th monthly MIO Coalition meeting and new member interviews. The 
FY’ 2017 Executive Board of Directors were elected during this meeting. FY 2017 directors are as 
follows: 

President- Steve Raupe, Ozarka Water Company 
Vice President- Mary Hunt, Lopez Foods 
Secretary- Courtney Phelps-Talbot, Mountain View Meat 
Treasurer- Max McDermott, deVine Water 
Retail Co-Chairmen- George Lemmon, Clement’s Foods 

   Meg Navrath, Schwab’s Meat Co. 
   Kyle Slagell, Triple S Farms 

Foodservice Co-Chairmen- Tish Fidler, Fidler Marketing 
      David Boswell, Total Beverage 
 
Six new members were interviews and asked to join the Coalition. The new members are as follows: 

 
Game on Salsa, Enid Oklahoma 
Granna’s, Bessie, Oklahoma 
Towhead Salsa, Tuttle, Oklahoma 
Little Mike’s Caesar’s Salad Dressing, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
1907 Meat Company, Stillwater, Oklahoma 
My Brother Oog’s BBQ Sauce, Dewey, Oklahoma 

 



H-10 
 
 

Staff coordinated with US Foods Service Oklahoma & Texas to host an event in Ardmore 
Oklahoma for sales staff in Oklahoma and Texas in order to educate them on made in Oklahoma 
products. 250 sales staff attended and twenty MIO members attended and prepared their products 
for sampling. This is important for MIO members because the Oklahoma buying and sales office is 
being moved to Dallas and the Coalition wants to keep the bond strong between the two sales 
office.  
 

 
     

 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  
 
Oklahoma will receive $468,174.00 from USDA-AMS through their Specialty Crop Block Grant 
Program to promote projects within the state that advances the specialty crop industry. ODAFF 
distributes the funds through a competitive grant process. The majority of this process takes place 
during the months of May & June. 4 individuals from different regions of the state and various 
knowledge/involvement within the specialty crop industry served as the selection committee for this 



H-11 
 
 

process. A total of 12 applications were received with request for funding reaching $1,000,000.00. 
The committee scored the applications and the top 8 proposals were given the opportunity to come 
before the committee and present their project to them on May 25th. At the end of the day a final 
ranking was established and six (6) external proposals and two (2) internal proposals were approved 
for funding. Market Development’s grant coordinator has spent much of June putting the 8 
individual applications together into one application which will be submitted to USDA-AMS on July 
1st. 
Market Development staff traveled to Warner, Oklahoma on June 7 to conduct a cattle grading 
contest on the campus of Connors State College. This was the first contest Connors had hosted 
since 2013 and had a relatively small turnout with 35 teams participating made up of 97 individuals. 
The contest educates individuals about current grading producers and practices when evaluating live 
cattle. Students assess the animal’s gender, age, frame size, muscling and body condition. 
 
DIVERSIFIED MARKETING 
 
PLASTICULTURE 
 
Plasticulture staff completed this year’s garden installations during the past month and has kept the 
agency’s demonstration garden looking good. The vegetable side has done very well this year in 
production of kale, cabbage, lettuce, peppers tomatoes and sweet corn. The commodity portion of 
the display has been plagued with seed eating pigeons. 
 
Plans for a fall garden at Langston University begin with an planting in July. Over the past few 
weeks the extreme heat and humidity has forced us to alter our work schedules and work more early 
mornings and late evenings. Luckily the drip irrigation systems we use with plasticulture works in the 
heat very well and vegetable production continues to be good. 
 
Another advantage to plasticulture this year was noted when the early spring temperatures were 
below normal and the ground temperature took longer to allow growth of warm weather plants. The 
crops under the plasticulture system received more warmth and were able to grow more readily. In 
addition to the crops previously mentioned, our cantaloupe, watermelons, cucumbers and squash 
benefitted from the plasticulture systems. 
 
Our participants in the Specialty Crop Block Grant strawberry variety trials have planted their cover 
crops and the garden areas are now under vegetative cover.  
 
Micah Anderson will be speaking at the Tulsa Langston ACE Conference in mid-July, this a 
conference geared toward trying to stir the interest of underserved and handicapped youth to look at 
agriculture as a career. 
 
 
FARMERS MARKETS 
 
The ODAFF farmers market is up and running with three new vendors joining the market this 
season! Renrick’s Farm and Garden from Chickasha offers annual and perennial plants, The 
Homesteaders Finest from Lawton offers craft jams and sauces and Red Rock Premium Beef out of 
Hydro sells beef.  



H-12 
 
 

 

     
 
There are currently 76 registered farmers markets throughout the state and they are in full swing. Staff 
has been distributing OK Grown bags and recipes cards to those markets. Staff has also been reviewing 
interim reports and receipts and paying invoices for the 21 OK Grown markets that received the 
specialty crop block grants to promote specialty crops at their farmers market through advertising, chef 
demonstrations, Facebook and print media.  
 

                          
 
 
FARM TO SCHOOL 
 
Farm to School staff attended the National Farm to Cafeteria Conference in Madison, Wisconsin.  
Participation included the annual meeting, Midwest region meeting, policy change discussions and 
an introduction to Farm to Early Care. 
 
Oklahoma led a round table discussion on how to include Farm to School with Ag in the 
Classroom. The round table discussion rotated four times at 10 minutes a session. Farm to School 
staff introduced the Specialty Crop Magazines and Nutrition Booklets – great discussion.   Staff 
attended 4 workshops to help with understanding and education about Farm to School: 



H-13 
 
 

 
Practices and Operations in School Kitchens – understanding theschool lunch program, embedding 
our work within policy, and creating a vision of what school lunches can look like.  
Food Hubs and Farm to Cafeteria - 8300 farmer’s markets nation-wide. An option for seasonality of 
buying fresh is purchase in season,  process and freeze.On Friday, June 3rd was the regional 
networking breakfast where we met in our regions for our Round table discussions listed earlier. 
After this session was the opening meeting and speakers along with lunch. The speakers were local 
farmers and schools that connected well together and they shared their experiences. 
Starting Young Community Based Partnerships to Increase Children’s Access to Farm-Fresh Foods 
- early childhood classroom. The stations included things like a seed station with strawberries, 
avocado and other seeds with book connections and a hands-on look at each seed with activities to 
go along with them. 
 

 
 
Hands on Curriculum Strategies to Grow Young Minds connected students to fresh fruits and 
vegetables. There were story starters and the students would read the book and complete the story. 
 
Farm to School and AITC staff facilitated a one day trip to the Hydro area on June 9th funded 
through a Specialty Crop Block Grant.  33 Child Nutrition managers and staff visited Triple S Farms 
and Woods and Waters Winery. At Triple S Farms, participants learned about the equipment used 
and processing of sweet potatoes. . Kyle also talked and we walked out to the site where the 
watermelons were growing. We then took a stop in Albert to where Triple S stores the sweet 
potatoes. We then headed to Anadarko for the winery. We had a great lunch and then the chef came 
out and demonstrated how he prepared our dessert. AITC/Farm to School staff did a couple of 
activities with the child nutrition folks to see how they envisioned Farm to School. 
 

 
     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



H-14 
 
 

INTERNATIONAL MARKETING 
 
Staff attended a conference sponsored by the OK Department of Commerce for a visiting 
delegation of businessmen and women from Gansu China on May 9. Staff was also invited to attend 
the dinner for the visitors at the Capitol on the same day. Staff attended the bi-monthly GIT 
meeting on May 17, and met with a visitor from Bangladesh on the18th to discuss OK Agriculture.  
Staff is working on a number of SUSTA projects which will take place the balance of 2016. The 
International PLMA Show took place May 21-18. Six SUSTA companies participated including 
Clements Food’s international broker, ATI International. They represented a variety of Clements 
salad dressings, vinegars, mayonnaise and mustards at the show.  
 
The Fancy Food Show is scheduled for June 26-28. Nineteen SUSTA region companies will be 
exhibiting this year. Staff participated in a SUSTA webinar on May 7th, the purpose of which was to 
better prepare the 19 exhibitors for their participation, answering commonly asked questions.  One-
on-one meetings are scheduled on the 25th with buyers from India and the EU. Leah Olson, SUSTA 
intern, prepared a directory of all the SUSTA participants attending the show. The directory will be 
distributed to the buyers.  German importer, Claudia Beckord, and the buying staff from the 
KaDeWe will be in attendance as well. Staff will be meeting with them on the 26th to discuss 
scheduling another German in-store promotion next summer.  Pepper Creek Farms and Griffin 
Food’s House of Webster will be exhibiting. Staff assisted Craig Weissman, Pepper Creek, secure a 
Canadian consultant. Pepper Creek has secured a fairly substantial Canadian order, and needed 
assistance with labelling. English and French labels are required for the Canadian market. 
 
In addition, Staff is working on the coordination of an Inbound Mission from Costa Rica in August, 
an Inbound Mission from Canada in September, the Abastur Food Service Trade Show in Mexico in 
August, and a Mexico Inbound Mission end of October.     
 
Staff is coordinating another in-store promotion with German importer Claudia Beckord this 
summer in which 20 of the higher end Kaufhof stores will be featuring specialty products from the 
SUSTA region. Suan’s products were tapped to be among the product mix again this year. Suan 
received a 225 case order from The Food Company in Germany; the product was shipped out of the 
Gulf of Mexico on May 7th. Staff will be attending the promotion, July 3-10th.   
 
SUSTA is considering enhancing their services to include a package of value-added selections such 
as in-country consulting, identifying in-country distributors, etc. They would potentially charge for 
these services much like WUSATA and the Northeast Regional are currently doing. Staff is on the 
committee to evaluate this initiative. 
 
Staff worked with Mark Hamilton, Native American Specialty Food Products, Coleman OK, to 
secure SUSTA MAP funding to attend a trade show in Kunming China in early June. Pecans and 
pecan oil is their specialty.    Certificates of Free Sale were prepared for Lopez Foods the bulk of the 
shipments were destined for locations in Central America.  



H-15 
 
 

 
American Flag designating the SUSTA Booth at the International PLMA Show, May 24-25, 2016 

 
Kuddos from Folks: 
Hi Barbara- You got it!! That is his name!! He emailed me just a few minutes ago and does want our 
pricing; Yippee!!  Thank you again and again Barbara! You rock! :-) Laura Daniels, Ken’s Bakery 

You. are. The. Best! Jeff Regan, KiZE 

Dear Miss Charlet, Thank you for taking time out of your day to talk to our group about Made in 
Oklahoma products and the importance of local agricultural products! Your passion for local 
agriculture absolutely shines and people like you are one of the reasons I am so passionate about 
agriculture! Thank you once again! Katy Ronck, Oklahoma page at the State Capitol. 
 
MARKET NEWS 
 
The 2015-2016 beef market decline continued during this reporting period and once again losses 
were noted in all segments of the beef industry. Chicago Mercantile Exchange cattle futures were 
extremely erratic but steadily moved lower from week to week. The only bright spot was wholesale 
beef prices that were able to take advantage of seasonal spring outdoor grilling demand. However, 
by the end of the period prices were moving lower. Hot weather and lower futures markets limited 
demand for calves during June and prices were sharply lower. 
 
At Oklahoma City, 500 to 600 lb. calves were $20.00-25.00 lower from early May. Prices ranged 
from $144.00-156.00 with a weighted average of $151.40. Short weaned and fleshy calves were in 
extremely limited demand and were sometimes discounted over $20.00 per cwt. Yearling steers 
weighing 700-800 lbs. traded from $134.00-144.50 on June 20th and had a weighted average of 
$141.07—overall $3.00-7.00 lower than early May prices.  
 
Negotiated fed cattle trade remained very limited on light demand and typically moderate numbers 
offered in the Southern Plains. Slaughter steers and heifers were $1.00-3.00 lower in late trading 
selling from $120.00-123.00 in Kansas and Texas. Wholesale beef prices rallied strongly early in the 
period but were in a downward trend by the last half of June. The estimated boxed beef cutout value 
of Choice carcasses was $219.42 on June 20, up $15.15 from May 5.  
 
Alfalfa trade finally improved after the first cutting was largely complete. Demand for dairy hay was 
light to moderate at best as milk prices continue well below breakeven levels and supplies of alfalfa 
are more than adequate for demand. The bulk of dairy hay moved during this period traded from 
$120.00-140.00 per ton at the field.  
 





I-1 
 

 

Oklahoma Department of Agriculture,  
Food, and Forestry 

July 12, 2016 Board Report for the 
Agricultural Environmental Management Services 

Division 
Activities from  

May 2nd, 2016 through June 19th, 2016 
 

AEMS Agriculture Related Activity 
 

 
      

On May 31, 2016, in Jay, Oklahoma Jeremy Seiger along with the rest of the poultry 
inspectors conducted a workshop for poultry growers.  Topics discussed included the 
HB2208 reporting requirements that became effective July 1, 2016, and reporting 
information formation from last year’s records.    
 
 

 
 
 
Jorden Foster recently joined the AEMS team as an Agricultural Engineer.  He is a 
graduate of Oklahoma State University.  He is married, has a 15 month year old 
daughter name Jessy and they are expecting a second child in August.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Harold Springer recently rejoined the AEMS team.  
He has worked for AEMS Division several years back 
and had an opportunity to return to his old stomping 
grounds as a Professional Engineer. 

 
Jorden and Harold will both serve as technical resources for a variety of 
AEMS and ODAFF responsibilities. 

 
 



I-2 
 

AEMS Agriculture Related Meetings/Conferences Attended 
 
 May 3 – AEMS poultry inspector meeting in Stigler, OK. 
 Conducted monthly AgPDES meeting amongst AEMS staff. 
 Continued bi-weekly conference calls between DOJ/EPA/ODAFF/ADEQ/ and Arkansas Egg 

representatives. 
 May 5th and 27th Participated in conference calls regarding Leopold Conversation Award.  
 May 9th and 10th – Jeremy Seiger attended the National Association of State Departments of 

Agriculture (NASDA)/ Association of Clean Water Administrators (ACWA) meeting in 
Washington D.C. 

 May 19 – AEMS representative helped coordinate field trips as Ron Carlton EPA’s 
agriculture counselor visited Oklahoma.  Stops included the Noble Foundation, stream 
monitoring site and Reaction Energy (converting swine waste to organic fertilizer).  

 May 25 – AEMS hosted an AgPDES meeting with EPA to discuss the delegated program. 
 May 26 – AEMS CAFO inspector Ada Pfeiffer was accompanied in the field with a.  

Muhammad (Rash) Rasheduzzaman from Bangladeshi spent two weeks learning about 
Oklahoma agriculture and ODAFF responsibilities.   

 May 31 – AEMS personnel conducted a poultry training workshop in Jay, OK to discuss 
poultry reporting information to ODAFF 

 
AgPDES Permitting Activities 
 
 Number of AgPDES CAFO Authorizations this reporting period: 2 
 Number of AgPDES PGP Authorizations this reporting period: 0 
 Number of AgPDES CPG Authorizations this reporting period: 3 

 

Poultry Activities 
 
Poultry activities, topics and meetings arranged or attended by the AEMS team included: 
 

• Conducted 6 meetings with OSU Cooperative Extension Services County offices.  
• Conducted 10 meetings with the Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). 

 

Complaints and Inspections 
 
A summary of the complaints received and investigated plus all the inspections and technical 

assistance conducted by the ODAFF AEMS Staff for this reporting period: 
 

6 Complaints received and investigated this reporting period. 
6 Complaints closed this reporting period 

Complaints Received - Breakdown 
Cattle - 1 
Horse - 1 

Poultry - 1 
Mushroom Farm Odor - 1 

Misc. Animals - 2 
88 All complaints received in FY 16 
98 All complaints closed in FY 16 
208 LMFO/CAFO inspections, plus technical assistance. 
401 Poultry inspections and technical assistance. 

 



I-3 
 

CAFO and LMFO Activities - Month and Fiscal Year 2016 
 

 May 2 - June 19          FY16 Total 
Complaint/Compliance Follow-ups 26 268 
Routine Inspections 140 704 
Carcass Disposal Inspections 11 198 
Water Samples Collected 2 76 
Technical Assistance with Contacts 68 379 
Site Visit – Contact Missed 32 168 
Inspections with EPA 0 0 
Soil Samples Collected 0 0 
Construction Stormwater Inspection 0 0 

 

 
Poultry Activities – Month and Fiscal Year 2016 

 

 May 2 - June 19          FY16 Total 
Complaint/Compliance Follow-ups 8 124 
Annual Poultry Inspections 72 576 
Poultry Technical Assistance 329 2077 
Soil Samples Collected 54 444 
Site Visit/Review – No contact made  84 618 
Construction Stormwater Inspection 0 0 
Eucha-Spavinaw CNMP Written 9 154 
Inspectors Attending Poultry Education 
Classes 

3 19 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



I-4 
 

 
AEMS Division Trends for Licensed/Permitted Operations 

 
 
 

 
 

             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

 
Jeremy Seiger, Director 
AEMS Division 

609 

130 

70 
68 8 

364 

125 

End of FY13 AEMS 
Numbers 

PFOs

Swine LMFO

Swine AFOs

Other CAFOs

Lic. Compost Facilities

Private PWAs

Commercial PWAs
601 

129 

68 
69 8 

353 

121 
7 

16 
12 

End of FY14 AEMS 
Numbers 

PFOs

Swine LMFO

Swine AFOs

Other CAFOs

Lic. Compost
Facilities
Private PWAs

Commercial PWAs

AgPDES CAFO GPs

  

 

606 

127 

68 
65 8 

345 

128 

34 
18 

33 

Current AEMS Numbers 

PFOs

Swine LMFO

Swine AFOs

Other CAFOs

Lic. Compost Facilities

Private PWAs

Commercial PWAs

AgPDES CAFO GPs

AgPDES PGPs

AgPDES CGPs

 

598 

129 

67 
69 8 

334 

116 

25 
14 

32 

End of FY15 AEMS 
Numbers 

PFOs

Swine LMFO

Swine AFOs

Other CAFOs

Lic. Compost Facilities

Private PWAs

Commercial PWAs

AgPDES CAFO GPs

AgPDES PGPs

AgPDES CGPs



J-1  

BEFORE THE STATE BOARD OF AGRICULTURE 
OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD, AND FORESTRY 

  
JULY 2016 BOARD REPORT  

REGARDING MAY 1, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 24, 2016 ACTIVITIES OF THE  
OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL 

 
ACTIONS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION: 

 
Matter Type of Resolution Amount 

Breckenridge Farms, LLC  Stipulation $200.00 
Canyons Farms, LLC  Stipulation $200.00 
Deer Valley Farms, LLC Stipulation $200.00 
Thomas & Misty Leigh Denny Stipulation $400.00 

Khou Yang & Txarh Her Stipulation $600.00 
Snowbird Farm, LLC Stipulation $200.00 
Sooner, LLC#2 Stipulation $200.00 
Michael Biglow Stipulation $500.00 
Park Hill Plants Nursery Stipulation 10,0000.00 
Steven & Misty Reihm Stipulation $250.00 
Sooner Scale, Inc. Consent $1,250.00 

 
CONTRACTS REVIEWED OR DRAFTED (60): 

 
Forestry – (6) 
Market Development – (27) 
OGC – (1) 
Consumer Protection Services – (9) 
Wildlife Services – (6)  
AEMS – (2) 
Admin – (7) 
Lab – (2) 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING PROCEEDINGS: 

 
ODAFF v. Breckenridge Farms LLC, OGC-16-106: Initiated formal proceedings 
against Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for July 14, 2016.  Respondent 
stipulated to the allegations and paid the fine in full. 
ODAFF v. Canyons Farms LLC, OGC-16-108: Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for July 14, 2016.  Respondent stipulated to 
the allegations and paid the fine in full. 
ODAFF v. Deer Valley Farms LLC, OGC-16-105: Initiated formal proceedings 
against Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for July 14, 2016.  Respondent 
stipulated to the allegations and paid the fine in full. 
ODAFF v. Park Hills Plants Nursery, OGC-14-814: Initiated formal proceedings 



J-2  

against Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for July 14, 2016.  Respondent 
stipulated to the allegations and paid the fine in full. 
ODAFF v. Snowbird Farms LLC, OGC-16-122: Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for July 14, 2016.  Respondent stipulated to 
the allegations and paid the fine in full. 
ODAFF v. Khou Yang & Txaru Her, OGC-16-112: Initiated formal proceedings 
against Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for July 14, 2016.  Respondent 
stipulated to the allegations and paid the fine in full. 
ODAFF v. Sooner LLC #2, OGC-16-118: Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for July 14, 2016.  Respondent stipulated to 
the allegations and paid the fine in full. 
ODAFF v. Michael Biglow, OGC-11-243: Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for July 14, 2016.  Respondent stipulated to 
the allegations and paid the fine in full. 
ODAFF v. Kreg Butler, OGC-16-108: Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for August 11, 2016.   
ODAFF v. Wayne Ward, OGC-16-162: Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for August 11, 2016.   
ODAFF v. Richard Payne, OGC-16-155: Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for August 11, 2016.   
ODAFF v. Solitude Farms, OGC-16-335: Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for August 11, 2016.   
ODAFF v. Sooner LLC #1, OGC-16-123: Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for August 11, 2016.   
ODAFF v. Outdoor World Lawn Care, OGC-16-164: Initiated formal proceedings 
against Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for August 11, 2016.   
ODAFF v. TNT Applicators, OGC-16-296: Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for August 11, 2016.   
ODAFF v. Bar Pest Control and Tree Service, OGC-16-089: Initiated formal 
proceedings against Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for August 11, 2016.   
ODAFF v. Pete Leonard, OGC-16-063: Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for August 11, 2016.   
ODAFF v. Pete Leonard, OGC-16-065: Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for August 11, 2016.   
ODAFF v. Mahard Egg Farm--Boogie Hill., OGC-14-835 and 15-771:  Initiated 
formal proceedings against Respondent. Respondent’s attorney has made contact on 
several occasions. The parties have reached a tentative settlement. 
ODAFF v. Kirkpatrick Scale, OGC-16-132: Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Prehearing conference was initially set for May 12, 2016. In the process of 
resolving. 
ODAFF v. Ladon Miller, OGC-15-775: Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for April 14, 2016.  Default was to be 
entered at May 12, 2016 prehearing conference.  Respondent has contacted the 
Department.  We are currently working to resolve the NOV and will not propose a 
default at the May prehearing conference to allow for resolution of the issues in the 



J-3  

NOV.  In the process of resolving 
ODAFF v. Renay & Jacqueline Davidson, OGC-15-776: Initiated formal proceedings 
against Respondents. Respondents have paid annual licensing fees, but still have not 
resolved the administrative penalty portion of the NOV. Currently working to resolve 
this NOV.  
ODAFF v. Herbert Duffy, OGC-16-035: Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for April 14, 2016. Respondent did not 
attend the hearing. In the process of resolving. 
ODAFF v. Jay Don Reed, OGC-16-034: Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Prehearing conference was originally set for April 14, 2016.  However, the 
NOV was not picked up via certified mail.  The NOV has been sent to Investigative 
Services for hand delivery and the prehearing conference has been moved to July 14, 
2016 to allow for service. 
ODAFF v. Evan Howard and Lu Howard, Howard Kennels, OGC-14-457: Initiated 
formal proceedings against Respondent for failure to get a license and standards of care 
violations.   Respondent received NOV via hand delivery. Respondent sent in a license 
application and Dr. Judi Thomas conducted a pre licensing inspection on Monday, April 
6, 2015. Working to resolve full payment of the administrative penalty. To date 
Respondent has made partial payments totaling $450.00 toward payment of the total 
$500.00 administrative penalty.   
ODAFF v. Joe Herbert Jr., OGC-15-317:  Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Respondent has made contact on several occasions. The Department has 
received partial payment of the administrative penalty, and is currently working to 
completely resolve the NOV. 
ODAFF v. Grounds Keeper of Oklahoma, OGC 15-280: Initiated formal proceedings 
against respondent. Have not obtained service.   
ODAFF v. Turf Surfers, OGC 15-327: Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Have not obtained service. 
ODAFF v. Dollar General, OGC 15-329:  Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Have not obtained service. 
ODAFF v. Dollar General, OGC 16-327:  Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for August 11, 2016. 
ODAFF v. Family Dollar, OGC 16-318:  Initiated formal proceedings against 
Respondent. Prehearing conference was set for August 11, 2016. 

 
OTHER ACTIONS AND PROCEEDINGS: 

 
Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry v. Henry G. Drake & 
Henry Drake II, Drake Farms, District Court of Ottawa County, Oklahoma, Case No. 
CV-15-6:  This action stems from an issued Notice of Violation (NOV) concerning both 
the unlicensed sale of bagged agriculture seed which contained noxious weeds above 
accepted tolerances, and the continued offering of this bagged seed product under a stop 
sale order issued by an ODAFF inspector. Respondents received proper notice of the 
NOV but failed to appear and defend in the administrative action.  A default judgment 
was entered against Respondents, and the final order was converted to an Oklahoma 
state district court action in accordance with the Uniform Enforcement of Foreign 



J-4  

Judgments Act (UEFJA). A hearing on assets was scheduled for June 24th in the Ottawa 
County District Court to determine the solvency of Respondents. Respondent paid the 
$3,000.00 administrative penalty immediately prior the hearing on assets.  A Release 
and Satisfaction of judgment has been filed in the case.  This case will be concluded 
shortly. 
Oklahoma Employment Security Commission (OESC) telephonic appeal hearing 
Triple S, et al. v. ODAFF, et al., CJ-2016-6964 (Okla. Dist.): Claims against ODAFF 
dismissed on September 16, 2015. Claims against individual employees are ongoing. 
The case has been moved from state court to federal court at the request of ODWC. 
Motions for summary judgment have been filed by Plaintiff and by ODWC. The Court 
dismissed some but not all claims against ODWC on June 22, 2016. No hearings are 
currently set. OGC will continue monitoring the case. 

 
MEETINGS: 

 
Date Activity 

May 2, 2016 EPA Conference Calls regarding Arkansas Egg 
May 3, 2016 Director’s Meeting 
May 3, 2016 House Conference Committee on Administrative Rules 
May 4, 2016 Collections Meeting 
May 4, 2016 Arkansas Egg Status Call 
May 5, 2016 Pet Breeder’s Staff Meeting 
May 6, 2016 Ag Mediation Meeting 
May 6, 2016 Environmental Law Section CLE 
May 9, 2016 Oklahoma Horse Racing Commission 
May 10, 2016 Director’s Meeting 
May 11, 2016 AgPDES Meeting 
May 12, 2016 Docket Call 
May 17, 2016 Director’s Meeting 
May 18, 2016 Arkansas Egg Status Call 
May 20, 2016 Kirkpatrick Foundation dedication of Red Star Emergency 

Management trailer 
May 24, 2016 State Board of Agriculture 
May 24, 2016 EPA AgPDES status meeting 
May 26, 2016 OGC Staff Meeting 
May 26, 2016 Tour Oklahoma Horse Racing Commission offices 
May 31, 2016 Director’s Meeting 
June 1, 2016 Arkansas Egg Status Call 
June 2, 2016 Collections Meeting 
June 2, 2016 Pet Breeders Staff Meeting 
June 3, 2016 Oklahoma Horse Racing Commission 
June 6, 2016 Meeting with attorneys Randy Miller and Chuck Shipley 
June 7, 2016 Water for 2060 Produced Water Working Group 
June 8, 2016 Meeting with Security Pest Control 
June 8, 2016 Earthquake Working Group 



J-5  

June 9, 2016 Docket 
June 9, 2016 Farm Services Administration regarding farm corporations 
June 14, 2016 Director’s Meeting 
June 15, 2016 Arkansas Egg Status Call 
June 16, 2016 Oklahoma Horse Racing Commission 
June 16, 2016 Fair Meadows Downs Tour 
June 17, 2016 General Counsel's Forum 
June 20, 2016 Director’s Meeting 
June 24, 2016 Drake Farms Hearing on Assets in Ottawa County 

 
RULE ACTIVITIES: 

 
Chapter 10. Agricultural Products (Permanent FY 2016): Rules approved by the Board 
on January 25, 2016 and submitted to the Governor and Legislature on January 29, 2016. 
Rules were approved by Governor's declaration on June 9, 2016 and will become effective 
on September 11, 2016.  
Chapter 13. Fuel Alcohol (Permanent FY 2016): Rules approved by the Board on 
January 25, 2016 and submitted to the Governor and Legislature on January 29, 2016. Rules 
were approved by Governor's declaration on June 9, 2016 and will become effective on 
September 11, 2016. 
Chapter 15. Animal Industry (Permanent FY 2016): Rules approved by the Board on 
January 25, 2016 and submitted to the Governor and Legislature on February 2, 2016. Rules 
were approved by Governor's declaration on June 9, 2016 and will become effective on 
September 11, 2016. 
Chapter 15. Animal Industry (Feral Swine) (Permanent FY 2016): Rules approved by 
the Board on March 1, 2016 and submitted to the Governor and Legislature on March 8, 
2016. Rules were approved by Governor's declaration on June 9, 2016 and will become 
effective on September 11, 2016. 
Chapter 17. Water Quality (Permanent FY 2016): Rules approved by the Board on 
January 25, 2016 and submitted to the Governor and Legislature on February 3, 2016. Rules 
were approved by Governor's declaration on June 9, 2016 and will become effective on 
September 11, 2016. 
Chapter 30. Consumer Protection (Permanent FY 2016): Rules approved by the Board 
on March 1, 2016 and submitted to the Governor and Legislature on March 8, 2016. Rules 
were approved by Governor's declaration on June 9, 2016 and will become effective on 
September 11, 2016. 
Chapter 37. Food Safety (Permanent FY 2016): Rules approved by the Board on January 
25, 2016 and submitted to the Governor and Legislature on February 3, 2016. 
Chapter 40. Market Development (Permanent FY 2016): Rules approved by the Board 
on March 1, 2016 and submitted to the Governor and Legislature on March 10, 2016. Rules 
were approved by Governor's declaration on June 9, 2016 and will become effective on 
September 11, 2016. 
Chapter 44. AgPDES (Permanent FY 2016): Rules approved by the Board on January 25, 
2016 and submitted to the Governor and Legislature on February 3, 2016. Rules were 
approved by Governor's declaration on June 9, 2016 and will become effective on 
September 11, 2016. 



J-6  

Chapter 50. Aquaculture (Permanent FY 2016): Rules approved by the Board on January 
25, 2016 and submitted to the Governor and Legislature on February 3, 2016. Rules were 
approved by Governor's declaration on June 9, 2016 and will become effective on 
September 11, 2016. 
Chapter 55. Commercial Pet Breeders and Animal Shelters (Permanent FY 2016): 
Rules approved by the Board on January 25, 2016 and submitted to the Governor and 
Legislature on February 4, 2016. Rules were approved by Governor's declaration on June 9, 
2016 and will become effective on September 11, 2016. 

 
OPEN RECORDS REQUESTS (39): 

 
AEMS-(10) 
CPS-(16) 
Forestry-(6) 
Animal Industry-(3) 
Investigative Services-(1) 
Pet Breeders-(2) 
Horse Racing Commission-(1) 

 
FARM AND RANCH CORPORATIONS REVIEWED: 

 
(6) sets reviewed.    

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 

 
Call from public regarding nuisance on land zoned agriculture 
Call from Respondent regarding open records request 
Discussion with AEMS regarding Notices of Violations 
Discussion with CPS regarding Notices of Violations 
Discussion with CPS regarding label requirements for pesticide devices 
Call from public regarding status of Notice of Violation 
Call from business regarding label requirements 
Discussion with attorney regarding stayed cases 
Discussion with attorney regarding requirements for nutrient management plan 
Discussions with Sirens Media regarding reality television, contract, and related issues 
Discussion with Respondent regarding payment of fine 
Discussion with Respondent regarding prosecution of administrative action 
Discussion with OHRC regarding employee handbook 
Drafted Memorandum of Understanding between ODAFF and the Oklahoma Horse Racing 
Commission 
Drafted presentation regarding legal and media training for investigative agents 
Discussion with public regarding farm corporation approval 
Discussion with public regarding 2016 rulemakings 
Discussion with public regarding pet breeders complaint 
Discussion with public regarding licensing of pet rescue 



J-7  

Discussion with Attorney General's office regarding ongoing Triple "S" litigation 
Discussion with U.S. Assistant District Attorney for Eastern District of Texas regarding 
ongoing criminal proceedings against Stephen Seibert. 
Discussion with attorney regarding subpoena of ODAFF employee to be a witness in private 
litigation 
Discussion with Secretary of State's attorney regarding Memorandum of Understanding 
between ODAFF and Choctaw Nation 
Discussion with private attorney representing horse trainer in OHRC administrative action 
regarding status of case and scheduling of appeal 
Discussion with company representative protesting ODAFF refusal to release documents 
without an open records request 
Discussion with public regarding Farm Services Administration complaint 
Discussion with public regarding scale question 
Discussion with public regarding cattle theft case 
Discussion with Respondent regarding enforcement action 
Sent employee handbook documents to Oklahoma Pardon and Parole at their request 
Call from public regarding live mice and chicks being sold out of parking lot 
Citizen walk in asking about beaver dam on property backing up water 
Call from public regarding foreclosures 
Call from public regarding food safety aspects of barrels 
Call from public regarding traffic accident involving a horse 
Call from public regarding Animal Cruelty story seen on Facebook 
Discuss SB1142 regarding feral swine hunting at night 
Meet regarding CAFO AgPDES permit renewal 
Discuss feral swine sporting facilities with AIS, Wildlife, and Executive 
Meet regarding Arkansas Egg NMPs 
Discuss farm corporation statute with Farm Service Agency 
Discuss Mahard enforcement issues 
Discuss MOU with Choctaw Nation regarding food deserts 
Discuss new pet grooming salon with private citizen 
Discuss various commercial pet breeder license renewal issues 
Respond to request regarding fiscal impact of Wheat Commission cleanup bill 
Discuss cattle rustling case with Investigative Services 
Discuss various Investigative Services press releases with Admin 
Discuss pet breeder complaints 
Interview with Channel 4 regarding HSUS puppy mill report 
Discuss open records request lists with OK Pork Council 
Discuss various matters related to sharing services with the Oklahoma Horse Racing 
Commission 
Discuss AgPDES Pesticide General Permit with AEMS 
Discuss parvo puppy with public 
Review Westlaw bills 
Discuss state employees running for state elected offices with Executive Office 
Discuss AEMS case management with AEMS 
Discuss pesticide open records issue with CPS 



J-8  

Discuss and review Board agenda matters 
Discuss Triple S potential sale of feral swine facility with AIS, Investigative Services, and 
Wildlife 
Discuss and prepare HSUS open records request 
Discuss Board justification for contracts over $10,000 
Discuss Kersee and pit bull rescue with Oklahoma SpayFirst 
Discuss Cimarron Pork issues with AEMS 
Review records disposition documents 
Close with no action taken OGC-16-312 Latisha Moffett no poultry waste applicator’s 
license 
Close with no action taken OGC-16-288 Greg Turpin land application with no soil or litter 
analysis 
Close with no action taken OGC-16-317 All Pro Lawn & Pest Control failure to furnish 
records 
Close with no action taken OGC-16-316 All Pro Lawn & Pest Control failure to furnish 
records 
Close with no action taken OGC-16-313 Tim and Mike Steward improper storage of poultry 
litter 
Close with no action taken OGC-16-287 Troy Bowden land application with no soil or litter 
analysis 
Discuss neighbor issues with breeder Elise Rouse of Rouse House 
Review Oklahoma Wheat Commission election procedures and prepare election appointment 
Discuss pesticide investigation on Indian Land with CPS 
Discuss beaver dam issues with citizen 
Discuss TMUA agreement for environmental specialists with AEMS 
Discuss M&M swine farm remediation with AEMS 
Discuss various budget issues 
Discuss Legacy of Hope pet shelter with neighbor 
Discuss farm corporations and Farm Service Agency issues 
Discuss pet breeder complaint with public regarding a parvo dog from a shelter 
Discuss grain elevator storage issues with DEQ 
Discuss annual report form with pet breeder 
Review draft letter to Legislature regarding rural fire funds 
Discuss T Bar M lagoon issues with AEMS 
Discuss road building at windmills sites jurisdiction with AEMS 
Discus poultry report data deadline with AEMS 
Discuss new feral swine fees with Admin 
Discuss AEDB event grants and OYE and Tulsa shows 
Discuss poultry waste management plans with AEMS 
Review and discuss corporate farming statutes 
Discuss musk thistle complaints 
Discuss and review food desert MOU with Choctaw Nation for American Heart Association 
Discuss voluntary shelter licenses with Blanchard Animal Shelter 
Review and discuss Tom Coleman breeder files and Georgia license revocation 
Discuss closure of swine farm and setbacks with AEMS 



J-9  

Close with no action taken OGC-16-364 Jerry Dewitt minimal over application of poultry 
litter 
Close with no action taken OGC-16-365 Joel Hancock Jr. poultry waste applied before soil 
and litter tests 
Close with no action taken OGC-16-366 Robert Halpain poultry waste applied without 
current soil and litter analysis 
Discuss HB3099 raw milk bill with public 
Close with no action taken OGC-16-367 Rick Jeans applied poultry waste without a current 
soil test 
Discuss Triple S Wildlife lawsuits 
Discuss produced water working group with Executive Office 
Discuss OHRC cases 
Review and sign FDA commission documents 
Review bill for unclassified positions 
Discuss Mahard open records request with AEMS 
Discuss earthquake response issues with AEMS 
Discuss pawn shops and scales 
Discuss animal rescue and burial of carcasses with Delaware County Sheriff’s office 
Close with no action taken OGC-16-373 Vue Lor applicator report incomplete 
Close with no action taken OGC-16-374 Mike Andrews poultry waste applicator report 
incomplete 
Close with no action taken OGC-16-376 Dooley Parsons poultry waste applicator report 
incomplete 
Close with no action taken OGC-16-375 Brian Cox minimal over application of poultry 
waste 
Close with no action taken OGC-16-368 Dan Yoder applied poultry waste without current 
soil and litter analysis 
Discuss LLC foreign ownerships issues with USDA OGC 
Discuss ALJ contract with Admin 
Discuss MOU with OHRC 
Discuss various AEMS matters 
Discuss Seaboard RCRA consent decree issues with AEMS 
Discuss various pet breeder complaints 
Discuss night hunting in feral swine sporting facilities 
Discuss Funk feed yard with AEMS 
Discuss ODWC and Cleveland County Rural Water District setback with Attorney General’s 
Office 
Discuss ODWC licensed feral swine hunt facilities with Attorney General’s Office 
Discuss Chicago Tribune open records request with AEMS 
Discuss various personnel matters 
Prepare pet breeder renewal reminders 
Meeting with CPS regarding Decommissioning of fertilizer facility 
Meeting with Food Safety regarding Limited English Proficiency Plan 
Meeting with AEMS regarding OESC matter 
Various personnel matters 



J-10  

 
COMMERCIAL PET BREEDER AND ANIMAL SHELTER ACTIVITIES: 

 
Complaints 

  Current Fiscal Year 
Received 8 40 
Closed 0 38 
Investigations 8 51 
Follow-up 7 62 

 
    

Shelter License  
  Current Fiscal Year 
New Applications 0 4 
Renewal 0 65 
Cancellation 0 5 

 
    

Breeder License  
  Current Fiscal Year    
New Applications 1 8 
Renewal 0 3 
Cancellation 0 1 

   Shelter Inspection 
  Current Fiscal Year    
Pre-Inspection 1 10 
Annual Inspection 0 3 
Follow-up 0 2 
Technical Assistance 9 89 
Close-out 0 8 
 

   Breeder Inspection 
  Current Fiscal Year    
Pre-Inspection 1 13 
Annual Inspection 2 40 
Follow-up 0 5 
Technical Assistance 7 67 
Close-out 1 16 

 



J-11  

 
  Respectfully Submitted,  

  

         
 
        Teena G. Gunter  
        General Counsel  



L-1 

MAY 2016 
FOOD SAFETY SERVICES 

MAY ACTIVITIES 
 

POULTRY AND EGG 
 
In Broken Bow at Tyson Foods, USDA poultry grading was performed by ODAFF inspectors on 
78,416 pounds of poultry – boneless/skinless thigh meat and boneless/skinless breast meat.  
ODAFF inspectors provided USDA Shell Egg grading on 50,995 dozen eggs at Mahard Egg 
Farms at Sulphur. ODAFF inspectors also provided USDA poultry grading services on poultry 
products being shipped from OK Foods in Muldrow & Heavener. A quarterly audit was 
conducted from the USDA Federal-State Supervisor on ODAFF poultry and shell egg graders 
under the USDA cooperative agreement.  Also; routine egg quality inspections under the 
Oklahoma egg law were conducted.  
 

Organic Foods Section 
Organic inspectors completed compliance and certification inspections at: 

 Eighteen organic crop producers 
 Two organic livestock producers 
 Two organic processors 
 Collected three organic samples 
 Fourteen retail organic inspections 
The organic section had requests for 4,000 certified organic stickers from Oklahoma 
Certified Organic producers and processors, which display the stickers on all products sold, 
labeled, or represented as Organic across the United States. The organic section had 7 
requests for organic crop applications, 4 requests for organic processing applications and 3 
requests for organic livestock applications  

 
MEAT INSPECTION 
May 11-12 Director Stan Stromberg attended the Food Safety Summit in Rosemont, IL. 
June 10-12 Director Stan Stromberg and Coordinator Scott Yates attended and presented and  

FSIS update at the Oklahoma-Texas Meat Producers Association Meeting in 
Stillwater, OK. 

June 19-23 Coordinator Scott Yates attended the National Association of State Meat and  
Food Inspection Directors meeting in New Orleans, LA  

June 24-30 Director Stan Stromberg attended the AFDO Annual Education Conference in  
Pittsburgh, PA 

 
 

DAIRY SERVICES  
Dairy Services staff continues to sample ice cream products at Blue Bell in Broken Arrow 
dealing with the issues related to the Listeria monocytogenes product contamination and 
outbreak in 2015.  Since starting back up in September 0f 2015 all samples collected and 
analyzed by ODAFF have been negative for Listeria. 



L-2 

  
Dairy services staff recently worked with FDA Regional Milk Specialist Frank Harris as he 
conducted Federal Check Ratings at 2 IMS/FDA listed facilities.  The facilities inspected were 
Borden’s Dairy in Tulsa and Parker Plastics in Sand Springs.  He also worked with Dairy 
Services director Sam Carter’s recertification as a State Rating Officer as recertification is 
required every 3 years.  Additionally, Mr. Harris conducted a preliminary inspection at a yogurt 
processing facility near Nowata which is seeking a FDA Interstate Milk Shipper’s listing later 
this summer or early fall. 
  
Dairy staff conducted routine inspections at dairy plants and farms, conducted dairy plant 
equipment checks and collected ice cream samples, raw milk and retail milk and milk products 
samples for laboratory analysis. Staff is currently working with a couple of new dairy producers 
and milk product processors.  These facilities are well on their way to being permitted by 
ODAFF/Dairy Services. 
 
ODAFF Dairy services members Gary Lewis, Pete Echelle, and Sam Cater will be attending 
FDA’s Advanced Problems in Milk Processing course held in Wichita, Kansas in late August.  
This training is required to maintain FDA certification as a State Rating Officer.  All travel and 
related expenses for this training will be provided by FDA. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
Stan Stromberg 
Director  



L-3 

Oklahoma Meat Inspection Services 
Investigations and Compliance Activities 

May 2016 
 
 
 

Planned Compliance Reviews.....................................................................   09 
            Random Compliance Reviews....................................................................  121  

Person-to-Person Contacts..........................................................................  02 
Special Investigations and/or Projects........................................................  00 
Reports of Apparent Violation....................................................................   03    
Detentions...................................................................................................  02 

 Consumer Complaints.................................................................................   07 
Verbal Warnings Issued..............................................................................   00 

 Letters of Warning Issued...........................................................................   03 
 Samples Submitted to Lab for Analysis......................................................   00 
 Accident Investigations...............................................................................   01 
 Administrative Procedures Act...................................................................   00 
 
 

The Oklahoma Highway Patrol notified Meat Inspection 
Compliance of one truck accident in April involving live cattle.  

 
See details below: 

 
 

   Accident Location               Live Animals              Disposition 
Tulsa                             117 uninjured            uninjured sent to  
                    17 killed                                   to destination  

killed 
properly disposed of 

 
                                                                                                

Highlighted Activities 
 

One of our Compliance Officers was contacted by the Oklahoma Highway Patrol regarding a 
semi tractor-trailer transporting live cattle on west bound I-44 near 161st Street in Tulsa, which 
was involved in an accident and overturned. The Compliance Officer made contact with 
company officials who opted to transported uninjured animals to final destination. The 
Compliance Officer confirmed that all the killed animals were properly disposed of at an 
approved landfill. 
 
OK-1-766: Report of Apparent Violation 
During the course of an investigation related to a consumer complaint a Compliance Officer 
(CO) noted an individual processing and selling beef jerky without any inspection. The 



L-4 

individual in question was not properly licensed by the Oklahoma Department of Agriculture or 
the Oklahoma State Health Department.  This is a violation of the Oklahoma Meat Inspection 
Act. The individual was notified of the non-compliance issue. A Report of Apparent Violation 
has been completed and a Letter of Warning has been issued to the party involved in this case. 
Planned compliance reviews have also been schedule to insure the person remains compliant.  
 
 
OK-1-767: Report of Apparent Violation 
 
During the course of a routine random compliance review a Compliance Officer (CO) noted an 
individual processing and selling beef jerky without any inspection. The individual in question 
was not properly licensed by the Oklahoma Department of Agriculture or the Oklahoma State 
Health Department.  This is a violation of the Oklahoma Meat Inspection Act. The individual 
was notified of the non-compliance issue. A Report of Apparent Violation has been completed 
and a Letter of Warning has been issued to the party involved in this case. Planned compliance 
reviews have also been schedule to insure the person remains compliant.  
 
 
OK-1-768: Report of Apparent Violation 
 
During the course of a routine random compliance review a Compliance Officer (CO) noted an 
establishment selling beef jerky void of any inspection. The establishment in question was not 
properly licensed by the Oklahoma Department of Agriculture.  This is a violation of the 
Oklahoma Meat Inspection Act. The individual was notified of the non-compliance issue. A 
Report of Apparent Violation has been completed and a Letter of Warning has been issued to the 
party involved in this case. Planned compliance reviews have also been schedule to insure the 
establishment remains compliant.  
 
 
Compliance Program Coordinator Bryan Suchy and Compliance Officer Brad Klaassen 
successfully completed the USDA’s Annual Security Awareness Training. 
 
 

 



This Month
Number of Cattle 332
Total Beef Condemned 4,900 Lbs

Number of Swine 107
Total Pork Condemned 728 Lbs

Number of Sheep and Goats 255
Total Condemnations 0 lbs.

Number of Rabbits 0
Total Condemnations 0 lbs.

Number of Ratites 0
Total Condemnations 0 lbs. 

Number of Exotic Deer 0
Total Condemnations 0 lbs.

TOTAL MEAT INSPECTED        350,250 Lbs

Processed Meat Inspected

Processed Red Meat 819,718 Lbs
Condemned on Reinspection   0 lbs.

Poultry (Portions) 6,914 Lbs
Condemned on Reinspection 0 lbs.

Rabbit Meat 0
Condemned on Reinspection 0 lbs.

Ratite Meat 0
Condemned on Reinspection 0 lbs. 

Exotic Deer Meat 0
Condemned on Reinspection 0 lbs.

TOTAL PROCESSED MEAT
INSPECTED 826,632 Lbs

A total of 16 meat samples were taken with 0 out of compliance. 

A total of 1 water samples were taken with 0 out of compliance. 

MEAT INSPECTION SERVICES
May Activities 2016

Meat Inspected (Slaughter)

L-5



 Communications Office 
May 14 – June 30, 2016 Activities Report 

 
 
PROJECTS AND MEETINGS 
Deputy Commissioner position changes hands 
ODAFF said farewell to Blayne Arthur who resigned her position as Deputy Commissioner 
at the end of May. Betty Thompson has been welcomed as the new Deputy Commissioner 
and is rapidly learning the agency’s divisions and responsibilities. She was introduced to the 
NASS and NASDA enumerators and joined Secretary Reese in posing for photos when 
awards were presented. 

 
 
SASDA meeting 
Staff attended the Southern Association of the State Departments of Agriculture in Point 
Clear, Ala. Reports were sent daily from staff to Secretary Jim Reese. Also a summary of all 
four days of notes was shared with ODAFF directors. Topics included feral swine, the 
Endangered Species Act, an ag retail view of federal issues and USDA-NASS and NASDA 
updates.  
 
Your 2016 Oklahoma Wheat Harvest 
Staff asked Facebook followers to share their 2016 Oklahoma wheat harvest photos. Staff 
also pulled in photos of harvest from ag commodity groups, ag organizations and 
agribusiness pages. Numerous photos were submitted or shared by ODAFF. One posted had 
a reach of 5,571 with 87 likes and 19 shares, while another had a reach of 2,587 people with 
77 likes. Also, five photos sent to ODAFF for this Facebook page project were used in the 
Sunday Oklahoman business story about wheat harvest. 



Bees are buzzing 
Staff worked with CPS to set up an interview with Phil Cross of Fox25. This was a special 
featured story on bee hives and the bee industry.  
 
SEM and FAC meetings 
Staff attended the Oklahoma State Emergency Board meeting at Okmulgee. Trey Lam with 
the Oklahoma Conservation Commission said that if not for the 145 structures in Garvin Co. 
the damage from last weekend's flooding could have been much worse. 
 
Staff also attended the Food and Agriculture Council meeting at Okmulgee. Rod Wanger of 
FSA said General CRP signup 49 ended February 26, 2016, and the results were announced. 
Oklahoma had 56,763 acres offered and 13,003 acres accepted. The current number of acres 
today in CRP is 721,607. There will be 42,337 acres expiring on September 30. This will 
result in the beginning CRP acreage for FY2017 on October 1 of 692,273. This is the lowest 
number of acres in CRP since 1987 when there were 515,127 acres in the program. The 
largest number was 1.18 million acres. 
 
Bilingual employee list 
Staff worked with ODAFF directors to compile a list of bilingual employees, listing the 
person’s name, department and languages he or she speaks. This can be used as a quick 
reference throughout ODAFF if needed. 
 
OCAST meeting 
OCAST noted the Oklahoma Plant Science Applications submitted for funding. OCAST was 
able to fund five of the 24 submitted for $249,917. These are two-year projects. 
 
National cutting horse show 
Staff attended, took photos and wrote a press release on the Non-Pro and Open Cutting Horse 
Event in Oklahoma City. The prestigious event, held at Oklahoma State Fair Park, featured 
more than 1,000 entries and about 700 horses from all across the U.S. It is the largest non-pro 
and amateur cutting horse event according to Della Hillerman, event coordinator. 
 
Significant Women in Agriculture 
Staff is developing a publication to highlight significant women in Oklahoma agriculture by 
collaborating with Damona Doyle and Sara Siems at OSU and various ag groups. The group 
is exploring options for nominations, a selection committee, and funding through grants or 
donors.  
 
Food Desert Taskforce 
A taskforce was formed through a memorandum of understanding between ODAFF and the 
Choctaw Nation. Staff will serve as the point of contact. The taskforce will be comprised of 
multiple groups and must meet no fewer than three times before November 1. The first full 
taskforce meeting is scheduled for July 14.  
 
Wheat sale options for farmers 
Staff created an informational release to give wheat farmers options to explore in the midst of 
the lowest wheat prices in a 10-year period. Secretary Reese and staff spoke with FSA about 
the Commodity Loan Program, Dr. Kim Anderson from OSU about other wheat options, and 



Brady Sidwell about futures and options. It is critical to ensure farmers are aware of all of 
their options in order to make the best possible decision.  
 
ODAFF hosts international visitor 
Md. Rasheduzamann spent two weeks as an intern learning about Oklahoma agriculture. He 
was one of a group of ten professional fellows from India, Myanmar and Bangladesh 
participating in an economic development exchange program sponsored by the U.S. State 
Department. This international executive exchange program is coordinated locally by Jeff 
Moore from the University of Oklahoma’s Center for the Creation of Economic Wealth. 
Sessions included a private conference with Secretary of Agriculture Jim Reese. 

 
 
SOCIAL MEDIA 
Facebook has 5,409 likes. This is up 271 from the previous report. 
Twitter has 2,033 followers. This is up 22 from the previous report. 
 
 
PRESS RELEASES 
Bangladeshi visitor learns about Oklahoma agriculture 
Homegrown by Heroes farmer veteran coalition 
Cutting horse show draws more than 1,000 entries 
From ice cream to tattoos: Food and drug officials work to improve safety 
Five arrested for theft of state property in Okfuskee County 
Secretary of Agriculture statement Jim Reese on passing of agriculture producer Jim Draper 
Phosphorous declining in the Illinois River 
Homegrown by Heroes 











































1  

JULY 12, 2016 BOARD MEETING 
 
PURCHASES/CONTRACTS 

 
 Administrative Services 

OSU - Poultry Disease Control Research for FY17 - $48,276 
The funding is for education training for operators of poultry feeding operations and land 
applicators of poultry waste provided by Oklahoma State University through the Oklahoma 
Cooperative Extension Service. 
 
Oklahoma Department of Career and Technology Education - Oklahoma Horizon 
Agriculture News Program for FY17 - $53,438 
For the for the purpose of producing the Oklahoma Horizon Agricultural News Program. 
They will develop and direct a weekly television program that focuses on Oklahoma rural 
economic development, Oklahoma agriculture, and career and technology education in 
Oklahoma. To provide a media director for the weekly show that will be responsible for the 
production and placement on Oklahoma local television.  
 
Rural Enterprises Incorporated for FY17 - $476,250 
This contract is with REI for the purpose of assisting agriculture and improving Oklahoma’s 
rural communities through REI’s Rural Development and Housing Programs. REI has the 
expertise and unique agribusiness and rural development programs already in place.  REI is 
the only entity in the state that provides a full menu of services including programs such as 
our Business Incubator/Commercial Facilities Program, a Market Rate Housing Program, 
Entrepreneurial Programs for Women, Native American and other minority businesses, and 
Business Lending programs that assist in essential aspects of agribusiness and rural 
community development.  
 
Tulsa State Fair for FY17- Expo Square - $39,375 
The amount of $39,375.00 goes directly for the purpose of promoting the Oklahoma 
agriculture industry through national agriculture events, Tulsa State Fair Junior Livestock 
Auction, and the Tulsa State Fair Livestock Scholarship Program.   
 
Oklahoma State University - Agriculture Leadership Program for FY17 - $38,000 
This contract is for the purpose of educating and training young leaders in the Oklahoma 
Agriculture Industry. The program focuses on developing potential leaders through personal 
and group study sessions. To help potential leaders develop a better understanding of the 
various systems of economics and government. To help program participants increase and 
utilize their own knowledge and skills in order to solve problems and to explore 
opportunities for Oklahoma agriculture. To develop and teach a curriculum including, 
leadership development; communication; government operations and institutions; 
economics, resource allocation, marketing and finance problems in agriculture; sociology; 
religious and cultural studies, major issues that affect Oklahoma and US agriculture, and 
political process, international trade, water and energy. 
 
 
 



2  

Made in Oklahoma Coalition for FY17 - $254,790 
The amount of $254,790.00 goes directly to support a unique public/private partnership that 
establishes a marketing program for the purpose of promoting food brand awareness, trade 
and consumer loyalty for Oklahoma food products through a variety of cooperative 
marketing activities.  In addition, MIO promotes business retention, increase of sales to 
retail and foodservice outlets and business expansion.   
 
Oklahoma Youth Expo for FY17 - $89,063 
This amount of $89,062.00 will directly support the 2017 state-wide spring junior livestock 
show.  For 101 years, the youth of the state of Oklahoma have exhibited some of the finest 
livestock in the country at OYE, which carries the title of “The World’s Largest Junior 
Livestock Show” with participants from all 77 Oklahoma counties.  OYE also provides 
agricultural scholarships and leadership-training programs for Oklahoma students.  The 10-
day OYE generates an economic impact of $24.5 million to the OKC economy and provides 
hundreds of youth with scholarships to continue their education at a collegiate level.   
 

 Agricultural Environmental Management Services 
Professional Services – FY17 request for approval of $170,000 to fund MOA with OWRB 
to sample LMFO groundwater monitoring wells around lagoons.  Funding is provided from 
EPA and dispersed directly to OWRB through OSEE.   
 

 Consumer Protect Services 
Purchase of 4 surface tablets, printers, mouse and cases for use by field staff - $9,600. 

 
Forestry Services 

Urban Forestry Council       FY17 - $20,000. 
Increase from $15,000 to $20,000  
This is a statewide urban forestry educational activities grant. Without this program the 
citizens of Oklahoma would not have the knowledge to perform proper tree care. Federal 
Funding 
 
Southern Pine Beetle Grant – Clifford City    FY17 - $4,000. 
This grant thins existing stands of pines, protecting them for pine beetle attack. 
Without this there could be economical loss to the landowners. 
 
Public Awareness Campaign, National Cohesive Fire Strategy FY17 - $110,000. 
Development of campaign to bring public awareness on wildland fire preparedness. 
 
 

Laboratory Services 
Purchased of 220 gram balance.  Purchase not to exceed $12,349.95. 
Purchase of the 220 gram capacity balance for use in metrology testing.  This is necessary 
to replace a balance that had lost low level measurement capability.  Without the purchase 
of this balance the Bureau of Standards would be unable to fulfill all of the parameters of its 
accreditation. 

 
 
 



3  

Purchase for repair service for Ion Chromatograph.  Repair service not to exceed 
$5,527.00. 
 
Purchase of various laboratory supplies (i.e. glassware, pipetters, etc.). Purchase of 
laboratory supplies not to exceed $19,933.07. 
Purchase of Laboratory supplies consist of glassware/small tabletop instruments/supplies. 
These purchases are necessary to fulfill our regulatory testing for the State of Oklahoma. 

Purchase of a Geminator with a Humidifier.  Purchase not to exceed $14,900.00. 
Purchase of germinator with a humidifier for the Seed Laboratory is necessary to replace a 
non-functioning germinator used in regulatory and private seed testing. 

 
Market Development Services 

Graphic Design for FY17 - $35,000.00 
The Agritourism Program is currently seeking a creative agency to maintain the 
Agritourism brand while developing new print materials, refreshing website content, 
strategically updating social media channels, and assisting with social and website analytics. 
It is the goal of the Agritourism Program to utilize all marketing channels to create a 
consistent brand awareness campaign and utilize social channels for seasonal promotions 
within the many categories of Agritourism.  

 
 














































































































































































































































































































































	Agenda
	Minutes
	Tab A - Administrative Services
	Tab B - Laboratory Services
	Tab C - Forestry Services
	Tab D - CPS
	Tab E - Animal Industry
	Tab F - Wildlife Services
	Tab G - Statistics
	Tab H - Market Development
	Tab I - AEMS
	Tab J - Office of General Counsel
	Tab L - Food Safety
	Section II - Communications
	Claims
	Purchasing
	Stipulation Approval of Cases
	Stipulations Tab - AEMS - Breckenridge Farm
	Stipulations Tab - AEMS - Canyons Farms
	Stipulations Tab - AEMS - Deer Valley Farm
	Stipulations Tab - AEMS - Thomas & Misty Denny
	Stipulations Tab - AEMS - Khou Yan & Txarh Her
	Stipulations Tab - AEMS - Snowbird Farm
	Stipulations Tab - AEMS - Sooner LLC
	Stipulations Tab - CPS - Michael Biglow - Vibrant Lawns
	Stipulations Tab - CPS - Park Hill Plants Nursery
	Stipulations Tab - Animal Industry - Steven & Mitsy Reihm
	Consent Tab - CPS - Sooner Scale



